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We use architecture as a total concept, 

combining valid principles to enforce 

that concept throughout the structure.

 An aesthetically pleasing space is 

created only after achieving this 

delicate equilibrium.
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S y m m e t r y
the quality of being made up of 
exactly similar parts facing each 

other or around an axis



H a r m o n y
the combination of separate but 
related parts in a way that uses 
their similarities to bring unity



S i m p l i c i t y
the discipline of minimizing, 

refining or editing back a design



H i e r a r c h y
a system in which people or things 

are put at various levels or ranks 
according to their importance



F l e x i b i l i t y
the quality of being able to 

change or be changed easily



a complete change in the appearance or 
character of something or someone

T r a n s f o r m a t i o n



understanding behaviour and effect 
without the use of reason, 

experimentation, assistance, or training

I n t u i t i o n



Vision

To set the benchmark for other developers to 
follow domestically and regionally.Mission

To be the region’s premier property developers 

providing world-class spaces, supported by a 

leading team of professionals.

- Corporate Social Responsibility
- Innovation
- Equal Opportunity Employer
- Integrity
- Excellence
- Maximum Stakeholder Return
- Respect

Core Values
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TPL Properties develops and invests in bespoke 
commercial and luxury residential spaces. We 
capitalize on growth opportunities, using our 
expertise to deliver value for our partners, 
customers and shareholders. Centrepoint was 
TPL Properties’ first project and is designed as 
an avant-garde commercial workplace. 
Adhering to high international standards of 
design and technology it is a unique addition 
to Karachi’s skyline.

Established in 2001 as an Asset Tracking 
Company, TPL Trakker Ltd. has transformed 
into Pakistan’s leading Telematics Company 
providing IoT, Tracking, Mapping, and Location 
Based Solutions. It is the only vehicle tracking 
company with a long-term financial status 
rating of A- by the Pakistan Credit Rating 
Agency Limited (PACRA) and, currently the 
only service provider of container tracking 
services for bonded cargo in Pakistan.

TPL Insurance is Pakistan’s first digital 
insurance company to pioneer a call center 
and web-based services. With the promise to 
lodge claims in just 60 seconds and process 
them in 45 minutes, TPL Insurance upholds 
quality service standards through highly 
trained staff and innovative digital products 
and services.

TPL Life Insurance Limited aims to provide 
innovative insurance solutions catering to both 
the Life and Health insurance needs of 
Corporates and Individuals. Technology, 
digitization and ease are at the core of 
everything that TPL Life does, enabling us to 
deliver an unmatched customer experience.

Group Profile

TPL e-Ventures aims to invest in multiple 
startups across tech-enabled companies at a 
pre-seed and seed level, with a vision to build a 
world class platform for catalyzing high 
potential entrepreneurs. As a first strategic 
investor, we play an active role at every stage of 
your company’s development.

Established in 2001 as a licensed security 
company, TPL Security Services is a progressive 
and innovative security solutions provider with 
unparalleled customer service. Our executive 
protection includes mobile squads, 24/7 
operations, an IT-enabled control room and a 
host of other features that may be customized 
to suit your needs. 

TPL Logistics was launched in 2018 and is 
Pakistan’s first digital end-to-end logistics 
provider. The Company is committed to its 
vision of using technology to remove 
bottlenecks throughout the supply chain. 
Rider, the first initiative in the product offering, 
is a last mile delivery service that uses route 
optimization, GPS data and live tracking to 
deliver products with speed and accuracy.

10
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50%

73.38%

29.62%

100%

83.75%

100%

6.91%

100% G-18 (Pvt.) Ltd.

100%
TPL Logistic Park

(Pvt.) Ltd.

100% TPL Property Management
(Pvt.) Ltd.

80% HKC (Pvt.) Ltd.

100% TPL REIT Management
Company Ltd.

29%
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Company Information
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Fax: +92 (21) 34168271
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Registered Office
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Web Presence
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Chief Executive Officer
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Chief Operating Officer
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Membership
of Industry

Sr. No. Membership Certificate

1 Pakistan Software Export Board (PSEB)

2 Pakistan Society for Training & Development (PSTD)

3 Pakistan Software Houses Association for IT & ITES (P@Sha)

 Association of Chartered Accountants Approved Employer -
 Professional Development

5 Karachi Chamber of Commerce & Industry (KCCI)

6 Overseas Investors Chamber of Commerce & Industry (OICCI)

7 Association of Builders And Developers (ABAD)

8 Pakistan Business Council (PBC)
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I am honored to present the notable 
performance of the Board of Directors of TPL 
Properties Limited (“Company”) to its 
shareholders which helped the Company in 
maintaining the growth momentum of the 
previous year, despite the challenging 
circumstances of the economy and the 
industry, in which the Company operates at 
the moment, due to pandemic outbreak of 
COVID-19. The Board remained committed 
ensuring the efficient functioning of the 
business of the Company and enhance 
stakeholders’ value by discharging its 
obligations diligently.

The Board composition is well balanced and 
diversified in term of skills, knowledge and 
experience; endeavoring to thrive the 
business of the Company in all situations and 
to benefit the management from its 
thoughtful engagement and regular support. 

The Board remained well focused to high 
standards of corporate governance and 
carried out a review, on a self-assessment 
basis, for the year to evaluate its processes 
and effectiveness with the aim of ensuring 
the more efficient and effective operations 
and its functions. The Committees (“the Audit 
Committee and the Human Resource 
Committee”) of the Board also played crucial 
role in ensuring adherence to all regulatory 
requirements by the Management. 

Given the COVID-19 has had a significant 
impact across the industries all over the 
world, it is commendable that the Company 
has, under the guidance of the Board of 
Directors, has continued to perform well. I am 
quite positive that we shall soon reap the 

benefit of the overall development plan of 
the Government of Pakistan in the 
construction industry in years to come. I 
would like to appreciate the expertise and 
counsel that the Board and its committees 
have contributed to the progression of the 
Company throughout the year. Similarly, my 
thanks to our leadership team and 
employees, led by Management.

Significantly, on behalf of the Board, I would 
like to express our gratitude to the valued 
shareholders of the Company and pray that 
the Company continues to grow towards the 
profit trajectory in the years to come.

Jameel Yusuf S.St.
Chairman of the Board
As of June 30, 2020

Chairman’s Review
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Despite the hurdles that the FY was 
peppered with, the Real Estate and 
Construction sector has been attractive due 
to a supply demand disparity in high-end 
commercial and residential spaces.

The Government’s timely initiatives of policy 
rate reduction, payroll financing and the 
Special Incentive Package for the 
Construction Industry by the Prime Minister 
have been a tremendous support to the 
business. Construction activities look set to 
grow in the coming months with builders 
and developers looking at a year-end 
deadline by which to begin construction.

Our flagship project, Centrepoint, has been 
one of the first office buildings in Karachi to 
enforce strict SOPs following the onset of 
COVID-19. We were quick to implement a 
Work From Home policy, with mandatory 
testing for those attending while observing a 
strict adherence to all SOPs. Masks and 
sanitizers were provided to all staff members, 
lift usage was restricted and seating 
arrangements were adjusted to 
accommodate the new protocols. 
Temperature taking and sanitization tunnels 
were available at entry points. In doing so, we 
mitigated the risk to both our employees and 
tenants without compromising on 
productivity levels.

We continue to maintain our unique 
approach to quality construction and 
management by engaging leading design 
firms, project management consultants and 
contractors. Our focus has always been on 
smart, technology-driven products and 
solutions that are sustainable and 

environmentally friendly. The One Hoshang 
project is at the detail designing stage which 
will be followed by the tendering process. We 
are in the process of seeking authority 
approvals and registration of the project in 
the Prime Minister’s Special Incentive 
Package for the Construction Industry. One 
Hoshang is a unique, premium residential 
tower which will offer futuristic amenities 
while retaining the façade of the 
architectural heritage of the location. One 
Hoshang will be Pakistan’s first LEED gold 
project after launch. In addition, we are also 
looking at procuring sites to launch CP II and 
other residential developments.

At TPL Properties, we are prepared to 
capitalize on growth opportunities, using our 
expertise to deliver value for our partners, 
customers and shareholders. Our belief in 
innovation and excellence comes with an 
aspiration to be part of a future landscape 
that is smart and sustainable. We will soon 
begin a new chapter of property 
development with a mix of residential and 
commercial projects in the city of Karachi, 
starting with Centrepoint II. Our aim is to set 
a benchmark by delivering on the excellence 
that has come to be our trademark.

Best,

Ali Jameel

CEO’s Message



Board of
Directors

Ali Jameel   CEO Fawad Anwar  Director

Siraj Dadabhoy   Director

Jameel Yusuf S. St.   Chairman

Sabiha Sultan Ahmed   Director

Vice Admiral (R)
Muhammad Shafi HI(M)   Director

Ziad Bashir   Director

Abdul Wahab Al-Halabi Director
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Sustainability
At TPL, we proactively integrate Sustainability 
into our routine decision making processes. 
Dedicated to driving positive change, we are 
aligned with the goals of the United Nation’s 
2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development.

COVID-19 Response at Centrepoint
In January 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO) declared the outbreak of COVID-19 
to be a Public Health Emergency of International Concern. In response, we minimized the 
risk faced by our people and implemented strict precautionary measures at our offices, in 

compliance with international guidelines for the workplace. We will continue to ensure the 
safety and well-being of our employees, suppliers, customers, and local communities in the 

battle against COVID-19. 

Our Focus Areas

Health

105,794
Beneficiaries provided with
good health and well-being

Education

6,189
Beneficiaries provided
with quality education

Environment

34,943
Agents of

environmental change

Work from home

Mandatory face masks

Limited passengers  in lifts

Sanitizer stations throughout
the workspace

Daily disinfection of facilities

Regular updates for protocols

Social distancing in
seating arrangements 

Social distancing in the 
Cafeteria



Agha Khan
University Hospital

Financial aid was provided 
to AKUH, supporting them 
in the areas of diagnostics 

and PCR COVID tests. 

Sindh Institute of Urology
& Transplantation (SIUT)

SIUT provides the best 
possible health care and 
treatment free of cost to 

eligible individuals. With the 
financial assistance provided 
by TPL in 2019-20, SIUT was 

able to provide dialysis 
services to multiple patients.

58th TPL Sindh Open Boys
Swimming

 Championship 2019 

1,926 dialysises performed 

Blood Donation Drive

TPL Partnered with The Indus 
Hospital and Pakistan Red 

Crescent Society to organize 
a Blood Donation Drive to 

help fulfill the nation’s 
demand for blood.

Number of blood units drawn
in four years

245

171

19’-20’17’-18’

116

154

Registrations Blood units drawn

TPL contributed towards the 
construction of Lady Dufferin 
Hospital’s new OPD building 
which provides free of cost 

gynaecological surgeries and 
deliveries, ensuring low 
clinical charges for the 

needy.

The Lady Dufferin Hospital

Construction of the OPD building that 
will result in a 10% increase in capacity

TPL was the proud Sponsor 
of the 58th TPL Sindh Open 

Boys Swimming 
Championship 2019. 

Organized by the Sindh 
Swimming Association (SSA), 
the three-day championship 
is one of the largest sporting 

events in the province.

63 Patients Served

Rs. 500,000 Donated

Awareness Sessions

To encourage employees to 
be mentally and physically 

fit, we regularly arrange 
awareness programs.

Session on Mental Health
Awareness held for
100+ female staff on
International Women’s Day

Session on Breast Cancer 
Awareness held in 
collaboration with Shaukat 
Khanum Memorial Cancer 
Hospital for 45+ female
employees

Session on Good Health &
Well-Being conducted by
Dr. Kholod Shafi (MBBS & CFT)
for 20+ employees

400 contestants from schools,
colleges and recreational clubs

Health

20



Drinking Water

Responsible Consumption and Waste Management

No-Meat Monday

We have reduced our mineral water expense and mitigated plastic 
consumption by installing water purifying dispensers throughout 
Centrepoint.

TPL launched a Company-wide water and energy conservation 
awareness campaign to reduce our carbon footprint. We also 
partnered with Davaam Waste to recycle the waste generated 
from Centrepoint.

TPL introduced the concept of going meat-less on Mondays at 
the Centrepoint cafeteria to increase  awareness on adopting a 
healthier lifestyle.

Number of
plastic bottles
saved: 32,643

10 % reduction
in meat consumption 

per month

Language Sessions
TPL held basic English Language sessions for lift operators, 
housekeeping, security, electricians and kitchen staff. 

80+ employees successfully
completed the sessions

70 % waste 
recycled per month

Education

Environment
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TPL is committed to creating a dynamic and 
inclusive workplace that fosters a healthy, 

highly engaged and skilled workforce where 
everyone can excel. We ensure that everyone 
working with us feels welcomed, supported 
and valued for their talents. To ensure the 

continuous growth of our employees in their 
professional endeavors, we regularly conduct 
training sessions which include both soft and 

technical trainings.  

Training and Development

Employees trained in
soft and technical skills

6

TPL strives to operate with integrity, 
promoting diversity and inclusion in the 

workplace. As an equal opportunity 
employer, management teams ensure that 

people from diverse backgrounds are 
recruited. TPL implemented a Paternity 

Leave Policy with support and flexibility for 
fathers to help them transition to 

parenthood.

TPL strives to ensure the routine 
implementation of strict policies and 

targeted safety drills. We aim to provide a 
workplace environment where employees 

are physically and mentally safe. 

TPL conducted a Cardiopulmonary 
Resuscitation (CPR) Training Session in 
collaboration with Indus Hospital for 

employees. By learning this life saving 
technique, our employees will be able to 

assist a person in need.

Diversity and Inclusion

Health and Safety in the
Workplace

Total number of employees
127

Gender Diversity Ratio
1:17

Social Responsibility
CPR Training Workshop

Employees received basic 
CPR certification

50+
conducted
in 2019-20

2 Fire Drills
Fatalities reported

in 2019-20

0



Over the years, TPL has supported more than 50 nonprofit 
organizations and charitable trusts across Pakistan, ranging from 
local charities to international NGOs and universities.

We aim to understand the challenges being faced by our 
communities to make collective change.

Scaling for
Impact
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Horizontal Analysis Cash Flow Statement 

22020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before taxation 2277,523,341          752,221,610         1,249,092,872         375,078,752           314,236,329             203,765,099       
Adjustment for non cash charges and other items:

Depreciation 3,611,320              2,534,302             2,341,814                  2,459,696                 2,325,011                  1,028,042             
Fixed assets write-off -                           -                          10,000                         38,565 -                                                        -                            
Amortisation of intangible assets 150,690                  150,690                 
Finance cost 419,071,628          267,247,691         207,664,482            176,487,486           236,618,104             254,204,115       
Remeasurement of investment property at fair value (292,165,699)        (666,992,964)       (1,180,808,607)       (288,765,209)         (274,217,887)           (317,506,439)      
Exchange loss / (gain) - net -                           -                          -                                 -                                57,400,000               59,449,530          
Markrup on long term loan (61,292,126)           7,576,198             10,190,164               (6,386,284)                (26,506,951)              (23,973,444)         
Allowance for expected credit losses 155,022                  
Unrealised gain on Investment in mutual funds (370,021)                
Gain on disposal of shares (2,791,879)             (5,583,720)            
Mark up on saving account (12,098,997)           (33,252,590)          (20,261,045)              (3,814,384)                (3,576,768)                 (6,956,326)           

54,269,938             (428,320,393)         (980,863,192)             (119,980,130)           (7,958,491)                 (33,754,522)           
Operating profit before working capital changes 331,793,279          323,901,217         268,229,680            255,098,622           306,277,838             170,010,577       
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Advance, deposits and prepayments 114,190,774            69,101,474           (114,271,568) 177,594,8                            6,357,513                  (3,800,663)           
Tools 107,600                  
Receivables against rent (24,138,769)           21,032,666           (18,863,580)              (5,589,033)                (10,190,053)              (3,820,687)           
Due from related parties 2217,662,632          (214,862,834)       (331,983)                    (9,131,238) -                                                -                            

207,822,237          (124,728,694)       (133,467,131)           (6,224,500)                (3,832,540)                 (7,621,350)           
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 111,498,396          (6,437,257)            (17,514,636)              (90,324,735) )047,496(                                88,677,537          
Due to a related party – unsecured 4,569,237              -                          -                                 -                                -                                -                            
Advance against rent (4,527,150)             42,133,628           11,953,422               15,074,898             (18,234,022)              25,470,095          
Cash generated from operations 6651,155,999          234,868,894         129,201,335            173,624,285           283,516,536             276,536,859       
Receipts / (payments) for :
Finance cost ((404,541,349)        (234,765,644)       (194,950,635)           (207,426,462)         (437,591,635)           (162,735,043)      
Mark up on saving account account received 111,849,036            33,252,590           20,261,045               3,814,384                 3,576,768                  6,956,326             
Long term deposits --                           -                          (100,000)                    
Income taxes 227,007,635            (72,737,677)          (24,369,124)              (20,027,105)            (50,607,603)              (38,983,452)         

(365,684,678)            (274,250,731)           (199,158,714)           (223,639,183)         (484,622,470)           (194,762,169)      
Net cash flows (used in) / from operating activities 285,471,321          (39,381,837)          (69,957,379)              (50,014,898)            (201,105,934)           81,774,690          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of - property and equipment (1,559,029)             (2,364,274)            (696,299)                    (3,652,999)                (6,322,378)                 (278,000)               
Expenditure - investment property under construction -                           -                          -                                 -                                -                                -                            
                           - incurred on investment property (87,836,349)           (13,916,864)          (16,868,937)              (46,918,610)            (38,782,113)              (23,493,561)         
Addition to capital work-in-progress --                           (4,034,487)            (16,082,963)              (8,190,703) -                                                -                            
Sale proceed from fixed assets -                           -                          -                                 -                                -                                -                            
Long-term deposits --                           -                          -                                 -                                (100,000) -                                                
Purchase of Intangible asset -                           -                          (753,449) -                                                    -                                -                            
Long-term loan-net ((661,805,788)        (279,999,069)       (375,756,423)           (36,848,505)            187,064,723             (38,012,488)         
Investments -                           -                          -                                 -                                (352,000,000) -                                       
Purchase of New Shares (1,100,000)             (51,000,000)          
Advance against subscription of shares --                           -                          -                                 -                                -                                -                            
Purchase of Investment in mutual funds (10,000,000)           

Proceeds from dis

Proceeds from disposal of Investment in mutual funds

posal of Investment in subsidary
12,5000,00012,5000,000

            94,174,320           
Markrup on loan received --

-
                           -

-

                          -                                 33,416,026 -                                              -                            
Markrup on saving account -                           -                          -                                 -                                -                                -                            
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (749,801,166)        (257,140,374)       (410,158,071)           (62,194,791)            (210,139,768)           (61,784,049)         

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceed from isuance of share capital -                           -                          -                                 300,000,004           1,197,181,000 -                                     
Share issue cost --                           -                          -                                 (22,135,323)            (76,683,849)              
Long-term loans – net 4477,543,239          (36,889,058)          280,207,854            (208,164,942)         36,750,000 -                                           
Loan from Director / related party -                           2,308,906             (3,835,832)                (263,733,441)         (290,541,608)           80,328,784          
Long term Financing - net -                           -                          -                                 -                                -                                -                            
Short-term borrowing -                           -                          400,000,000            (200,000,000)         200,000,000 -                                         
Net cash generated (used in) / from financing activities 477,543,239           (34,580,152)            676,372,022              (394,033,702)           1,066,705,543         80,328,784            

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents 13,213,394            (331,102,363)       196,256,572            (506,243,391)         655,459,841             100,319,425       
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 209,486,831             540,589,194            344,332,622            850,576,013           195,116,171             94,796,746          
Cash and cash equivalents trasneferred under the scheme 2,431,909                   
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 225,132,134           209,486,831           540,589,194              344,332,622             850,576,013             195,116,171         
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 2020 % 2019 %
WEALTH GENERATED Amount in Rs  Amount in Rs

Total revenue inclusive of Other Income 995,856,099              1,306,246,561   
Direct Operating cost and Administrative and
    General expenses (256,212,397)  (172,782,894)  

               739,643,702  100% 1,133,463,667  100%

WEALTH DISTRIBUTION         
         
To Employees        
Salaries, benefits and other costs                  94,081,821  13%                  89,661,366  8%
        
To Government         
Income tax, sales tax, excise duty and others               106,272,254  14%                  37,462,918  3%
        
To Society         
Contribution towards education, health and environment                     3,400,000  0.46%                     7,500,000  0.66%
         
To Provider of Capital         
Dividend to shareholders                                        -                                             -     
Markup / Interest expenses on borrowed funds               419,071,628  57%               290,216,528  26%
        
To Company         
Depreciation, amortization & retained profit               116,817,999  16%               708,622,855  63%

               739,643,702  100%           1,133,463,667  100%
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The Directors are pleased to present the audited financial information for the year ended June 30, 2020 and a brief review of the 
Company’s operations.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The year ending June 2020 proved eventful as well as challenging for the economy. The Government’s decision to reduce fiscal 
deficit, rein in inflation helped stabilize the economy. However, this led to reducing the GDP growth rate, and the COVID-19 
pandemic compounded the issue and reduced the growth rate even more.

The Government has remained active in providing relief to industry in these testing times. One of the key factors to help survive 
the economic effects of the pandemic has been the decision of the State Bank of Pakistan to slash key policy rate to 7% from 
13.25 percent. The decision was made as inflation outlook improved and was recorded at 8.6% YoY in June 20. Whilst the 
domestic slowdown continued and risks to growth have increased, this step provided the much needed liquidity to the market 
and households.

The outlook for the construction and real estate sector looks promising on the back of steps undertaken by the government; 
such as the Introduction of a fixed tax regime on the basis of per square foot on saleable area. This coupled with a relaxation in 
the declaring of the source of funds should provide growth opportunities to the sector but also lead to documentation of the 
economy. Measures such as a 90% tax reduction on tax on the schemes under Naya Pakistan Housing Scheme should only 
benefit the economy and allied industries in general but would also create many employment opportunities.

The Government also took the initiative to create demand in the housing and construction sector activity with PKR 330 billion of 
mortgage financing by commercial banks in just 18 months.  In this scheme, loans against the markup of 5%-7% will be provided 
to low and middle income households to build houses with this mortgage financing.

Projects under the China Pakistan Economic corridor (CPEC) are picking up pace as well. With 19 Projects completed, 28 under 
implementation and 41 in the pipeline, these projects would provide long term benefits to the economy.

It is expected now that all of these factors would lead to, bringing back  much needed foreign direct investment in the country 
which has been gravely missing in the sector in the past year. In FY 20, Out of the total FDI of $2,561 mn , Just $20.7 mn was 
poured into the construction sector as opposed to 311$mn in Oil and Gas , 764$mn in Power and 622$mn in IT & Telecom 
sector.

Looking ahead, the overall economic environment is expected to improve at a slow pace in FY 21. However, much is dependent 
on how the situation of the pandemic unfolds in the months to come.

COMPANY OUTLOOK

During the second half of the outgoing fiscal year we have seen a decline in the occupancy ratio and demand for office space 
including pressure on valuations due to COVID19 pandemic. Whilst at the same time it brought opportunity for the Company in 
the shape of a bid for the purchase of its leading commercial office tower, Centrepoint, from Bank Al Habib. We have capitalized 
on the same and decided to sell this asset as per our exit strategy at the right valuation. This has opened up various new avenues 
for us in terms of acquiring more real estate for development. We are actively exploring these new development avenues with a 
focus on the Karachi market.

Our One Hoshang premium mixed use development project is moving towards finalization of detailed designing followed by 
tender documentation. Regulatory approvals are still under process and our Heritage NOC expected by the end of September 
2020. The project launch has been planned in January 2021.

As things are getting back to normal from the point of view of the pandemic impact, we are working closely with our JV partner 
at the Logistic Park project for transferring the project land into SPV. At the same time engagements with the design and project 
management team has been initiated to finalize their appointments.
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Revenue increased 68% over last year, 52% due to CPMS Merger and 16% on account of contract renewals for five floors. Gross 
Profit increased 18% mainly due to contract renewals and reclassification of depreciation as certain plant and equipment 
moved to TPL Properties due to merger under the head Investment Property. Profit before tax (PBT) went down by PKR 171m 
(-23%) because of increase in finance costs and lesser gain on revaluation of Investment Property (down 56%).  Finance Cost 
was high as State Bank increased KIBOR by 550 BPS during early part of the year. The revaluation gain on Investment Property 
is PKR 292m.

CONSOLIDATED PERFORMANCE

Comparisons of the audited consolidated results of the Company with the corresponding period are given below:

  Period Ended Period Ended
 Particulars 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19
  (audited) (audited)

Revenue 678,368,219 402,594,669

Gross Profit 461,391,407 390,985,565

Operating Profit 323,770,468 286,161,768

Profit before tax 277,523,341 752,221,610

Profit after tax 276,980,071 730,061,838

     

Number of outstanding shares 327,393,106 327,393,106

Earnings per share - pre tax                 0.85                  2.30 

Earnings per share - post tax                 0.85                  2.23 

  Period Ended Period Ended
 Particulars 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19
  (audited) (audited)

Revenue 678,368,219 597,206,250

Gross Profit 461,391,407 422,873,462

Operating Profit 320,031,053 283,482,143

Profit before tax 218,447,305 702,305,928

Profit after tax 113,206,679 676,253,924

     

Number of outstanding shares 327,393,106 327,393,106

Earnings per share - pre tax                 0.67                  2.15 

Earnings per share - post tax                 0.35                  2.07

FINANCIAL REVIEW

In the Board of Directors meeting held on 26th February 2020, it was decided that the operations of 100% owned subsidiary of 
TPL Properties, namely Centrepoint Management Services Pvt. Ltd. (CPMS), shall be merged into TPL Properties Limited with 
effect from 1st July 2019. As a result, the standalone financial performance of the company reported below for the year ended 
30th June 2020 is inclusive of the financial results of CPMS.

STANDALONE PERFORMANCE

Comparisons of the audited Standalone results of the Company with the corresponding period are given below: 

Consolidated revenue was higher by 14% because of renewal of contracts with some of the tenants. Operating 
profit improved by 13% in line with revenue. However, Profit before tax (PBT) was under pressure and down by PKR 
483m (-69%) on account of increased finance cost and lower revaluation gain compared to last year.
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DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has recommended holding the profit for the year as retained earnings to meet the Working 
Capital requirements and for investment in potential projects to enhance future profitability of the Company.

AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants retired and being eligible, have offered 
themselves for reappointment for the new financial year. As recommended by the Audit Committee, the Board has 
approved the proposal to appoint M/s EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants as the statutory auditors of the 
Company, subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company carried out transactions with its related parties. Details of these transactions are 
disclosed in note 33 to unconsolidated financial statements attached therein.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD AND THE BOARD COMMITTEES

The total number of Directors are eight (08) as per the following:

The composition of the Board is as follows: 

 Male Female

 7 1

 Category Names

Independent Director  Mr. Ziad Bashir
  Mr. Abdul Wahab M. Halabi

Executive Directors  Mr. Ali Jameel
  Ms. Sabiha Sultan Ahmed

Non-Executive Directors  Mr. Jameel Yusuf
  Mr. Siraj Dadabhoy
  Vice Admiral (R) Mohammad Shafi, Hi(M)
  Mr. Fawad Anwar

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 

 Category Names

Audit Committee  Mr. Ziad Bashir – Chairman
  Mr. Siraj Dadabhoy – Member
  Vice Admiral (R) Muhammad Shafi -  Member
  Mr. Yousuf Zohaib Ali – Secretary

HR and Remuneration Committee Mr. Abdul Wahab M. Halabi – Chairman
  Mr. Fawad Anwar Member
  Mr. Ali Jameel – Member
  Mr. Nader Nawaz – Secretary
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board of Directors held 4 meetings during the financial year. Attendance of Directors is indicated below;

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

A formal Director’s Remuneration policy approved by the Board is in place. The policy includes transparent 
procedure for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. As per the said policy, Directors are paid a remuneration of PKR. 
20,000 for attending each meeting of the Board or its sub-committees.

DIRECTOR’S TRAINING

The board has duly complied with the Director Tranining Program requirement and the Criteria as prescribed in the 
listed companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019.

KEY FINANCIAL DATA FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS

 Name of Director Meetings Attended

Mr. Ali Jameel 4

Mr. Jameel Yusuf-S.St 4

Mr. Bilal Alibhai 1

Mr. Abdul Wahab M Al-Halabi 2

Vice Admiral (R) Muhammad Shafi 3

Mr. Fawad Anwar 2

Mr. Siraj Dadabhoy 3

Mr. Ziad Bashir 3

Ms. Sabiha Sultan 3

Directors’ Report
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  2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

                                                                                                                                                                                   Amount in Rupees ('000)

Investment Property          28,308 6,874,579 6,189,635 4,975,875 4,632,000

Property, plant and equipment            3,885             4,911             5,081             6,736             5,581 

Intangible Assets               452                603                753 - -    

Long-term investments        760,825      1,112,725      1,150,315      1,150,315         353,000 

Long Term to Loan to subsidaries     1,076,874         712,506         432,507           56,750           10,771 

Long term deposits            2,787                287                287                187                187 

Receivable against rent from tenants        120,041           24,387           45,419           26,556           20,967 

Advance, deposit and prepayment          46,564           56,172           25,398           11,126           19,622 

Interest Accrued          94,784           33,242           40,818           51,008           78,038
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  2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

                                                                                                                                                                                    Amount in Rupees('000)

Revenue        678,369         402,595  366,350 362,785 364,057

Direct operating cost      (216,977)        (11,609) (9,603) (9,909) (12,414)

Gross profit        461,392         390,986  356,748 352,876 351,642

Administrative and general expenses      (137,621)      (104,824) (107,534) (105,812) (53,056)

Operating profit        323,771         286,162  249,213 247,064 298,587

Finance costs      (419,072)      (267,248) (207,664) (176,487) (236,618)

Other Income          80,659           66,315  26,735 15,737 35,450

Gain on Valuation of Investment Property        292,166         666,993  1,180,809 288,765 274,218

Exchange (loss)/gain                   -                     -    - - (57,400)

Profit before taxation        277,524         752,222  1,249,093 375,079 314,236

Taxation             (543)        (22,160) (14,463) (23,101) (23,566)

Profit / (Loss) after taxation        276,981         730,062  1,234,630 351,978 290,670

Earning/(Loss) per share              0.85               2.23  3.77 1.68 2.12

Directors’ Report
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Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital     3,273,931      3,273,931      2,735,114      2,735,114      2,080,000 

Capital Reserve      (404,846)          21,746         560,564         560,564         140,497 

Accumulated Profit     3,569,183      3,292,203      2,562,141      1,327,511         975,534 

Long term financing     2,582,437      1,998,763      2,101,652      1,660,694      1,948,861 

Due to related parties          22,206           10,386             8,077           11,913         275,646 

Deferred Tax liability          15,809           17,188           27,567           38,237           39,005 

Accrued mark up        104,486           89,956           57,474           44,760           74,447 

Trade and other payables        195,230           49,556           55,993           73,508         163,833 

Short-term borrowing        400,000         400,000         400,000  -  200,000 

Current portion of long term financing        191,118         110,000           44,000         204,750         126,000 

Advance against rent from tenants        148,002         113,945           71,811           59,858           44,783 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   10,097,558      9,377,674      8,624,393      6,716,908      6,068,606 

  2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

                                                                                                                                                                                    Amount in Rupees('000)

Tools               964  -    - - - 

Due from related parties 1,040 215,195   332 - -    

Taxation- net        118,505 133,457             93,258           94,021           97,864 

Short-Term Investment               397 124   100,000 - -    

Cash and bank balances 225,132 209,487   540,589 344,333 850,576 

Non-current asset held for sale 7,617,000  -   - - -

TOTAL ASSETS   10,097,558      9,377,674        8,624,393      6,716,908      6,068,606 
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STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Board is fully aware of its corporate responsibilities as envisaged under the Code of Corporate Governance, 
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and is pleased to certify that:

l  The financial statements, prepared by the Company present its state of affairs fairly the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes in equity.

l  The Company has maintained proper books of accounts as required under Companies Act, 2017.

l  The Company has followed consistently appropriate accounting policies in the preparation of Financial 
Statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

l  International Financial Reporting Standard, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation of 
the financial statements and any departure there from have been adequately disclosed and explained.

l  The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

l  Fundamentals of the Company are strong and there are no doubts about Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern.

l  The company has followed best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance as laid down in the listing 
regulation

l  Key operating and financial data for the last five years in summarized form, is included in this annual report.

l  Outstanding levies and taxes are given in the respective notes to the financial statements.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

A statement of pattern of shareholding of the Company as at 30 June 2020 is as follows:

Directors’ Report
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Particulrs  No of Folio   Balance Share   Percentage 

SPONSORS, DIRECTORS, CEO AND CHILDREN 7 40,697,995 12.4309 

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES                  10 157,445,720 48.0907

BANKS, DFI AND NBFI                     1               1,500,000           0.4582

INSURANCE COMPANIES                     3            12,921,615           3.9468

MODARABAS AND MUTUTAL FUNDS                     1               2,992,500           0.9140

GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL)                339            22,573,148           6.8948

GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN)                  23               1,479,216           0.4518

OTHERS                  24            66,959,899         20.4524

FOREIGN COMPANIES                     2            20,823,012           6.3602

Company Total                410          327,393,105 100
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Pattern of holding shares held by the shareholders of the Company as at June 30, 2020:

 NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS From To SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE

 75 1 100 1,021 0.0003

 39 101 500 17,133 0.0052

 52 501 1,000 44,819 0.0137

 83 1,001 5,000 241,980 0.0739

 20 5,001 10,000 171,460 0.0524

 10 10,001 15,000 128,680 0.0393

 8 15,001 20,000 141,271 0.0432

 5 20,001 25,000 117,935 0.0360

 8 25,001 30,000 224,175 0.0685

 4 30,001 35,000 136,000 0.0415

 5 35,001 40,000 194,713 0.0595

 4 45,001 50,000 194,767 0.0595

 2 50,001 55,000 106,220 0.0324

 3 55,001 60,000 177,450 0.0542

 2 60,001 65,000 127,244 0.0389

 3 65,001 70,000 199,168 0.0608

 1 70,001 75,000 75,000 0.0229

 2 75,001 80,000 153,000 0.0467

 1 85,001 90,000 90,000 0.0275

 3 90,001 95,000 278,477 0.0851

 4 95,001 100,000 398,500 0.1217

 2 100,001 105,000 206,407 0.0630

 1 105,001 110,000 110,000 0.0336

 12 115,001 120,000 1,436,626 0.4388

 1 120,001 125,000 120,365 0.0368

 1 130,001 135,000 133,380 0.0407

 2 135,001 140,000 277,500 0.0848

 1 145,001 150,000 150,000 0.0458

 1 155,001 160,000 158,500 0.0484

 1 160,001 165,000 160,500 0.0490

 1 170,001 175,000 173,120 0.0529

 1 175,001 180,000 177,800 0.0543

 1 205,001 210,000 210,000 0.0641

 1 210,001 215,000 211,000 0.0644

 2 225,001 230,000 456,430 0.1394

 3 235,001 240,000 717,201 0.2191

 1 330,001 335,000 334,100 0.1020

 1 340,001 345,000 345,000 0.1054

 1 355,001 360,000 359,100 0.1097
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 NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS From To SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE

 1 395,001 400,000 400,000 0.1222

 1 475,001 480,000 478,800 0.1462

 1 565,001 570,000 566,181 0.1729

 1 570,001 575,000 571,300 0.1745

 3 595,001 600,000 1,797,000 0.5489

 1 690,001 695,000 690,965 0.2111

 1 715,001 720,000 719,500 0.2198

 1 790,001 795,000 790,600 0.2415

 1 805,001 810,000 810,000 0.2474

 1 895,001 900,000 900,000 0.2749

 1 925,001 930,000 925,500 0.2827

 1 950,001 955,000 952,660 0.2910

 1 955,001 960,000 957,600 0.2925

 1 1,105,001 1,110,000 1,107,225 0.3382

 2 1,195,001 1,200,000 2,394,000 0.7312

 1 1,470,001 1,475,000 1,473,954 0.4502

 1 1,480,001 1,485,000 1,480,300 0.4521

 1 1,495,001 1,500,000 1,500,000 0.4582

 1 1,915,001 1,920,000 1,915,200 0.5850

 1 2,250,001 2,255,000 2,250,710 0.6875

 1 2,255,001 2,260,000 2,256,597 0.6893

 2 2,390,001 2,395,000 4,788,000 1.4625

 1 2,495,001 2,500,000 2,497,877 0.7630

 1 2,890,001 2,895,000 2,891,952 0.8833

 1 2,895,001 2,900,000 2,900,000 0.8858

 1 2,990,001 2,995,000 2,992,500 0.9140

 1 4,785,001 4,790,000 4,788,000 1.4625

 1 5,495,001 5,500,000 5,500,000 1.6799

 1 8,060,001 8,065,000 8,063,800 2.4630

 1 9,330,001 9,335,000 9,330,615 2.8500

 1 9,575,001 9,580,000 9,576,000 2.9249

 1 15,460,001 15,465,000 15,464,890 4.7236

 1 18,325,001 18,330,000 18,325,135 5.5973

 1 19,760,001 19,765,000 19,761,488 6.0360

 1 22,975,001 22,980,000 22,975,210 7.0176

 1 47,480,001 47,485,000 47,481,715 14.5030

 1 47,930,001 47,935,000 47,932,789 14.6407

 1 68,225,001 68,230,000 68,229,000 20.8401

 410  TOTAL 327,393,105 100.0000
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Associated Companies, Undertaking and Related Parties  No of shares held  Percentage
(name wise details) (June 30, 2020)

TPL CORP LIMITED 71,700,300 21.9004%

TPL HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED 28,176,781 8.6063%

TPL INSURANCE LIMITED 9,576,000 2.9249%

TPL SECURITY SERVICES (PRIVATE) LTD 59,850 0.0183%

Mutual Funds (name wise details)  

CDC - TRUSTEE AKD OPPORTUNITY FUND 2,992,500 0.914%

Directors, CEO and their Spouse and Minor Children  (name wise details)  

MR. MUHAMMAD ALI JAMEEL 22,982,392 7.0198%

MR. JAMEEL YUSUF AHMED S.ST. 17,715,600 5.4111%

Following director is nominee director of TPL Corp Limited   

VICE ADMIRAL (R) MUHAMMAD SHAFI, HI(M) 1 0%

Following director is the independent director of the Company  

MR. ZIAD BASHIR 1 0%

Executive  

Mr. ALI ASGHER 1 0%

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting Interest  (name wise details)  

ALPHA BETA CAPITAL MARKETS (PRIVATE) LIMITED 47,932,789 14.6407%

HERITAGE CHAMBERS LIMITED 47,481,715 14.503%

MR. JAMEEL YUSUF AHMED 17,715,600 5.4111%

MR. MOHAMMAD ALI JAMEEL 22,982,392 7.0198%

TPL CORP LIMITED 71,700,300 21.9004%

TPL HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED 28,176,781 8.6063%

Details of trading in the shares by the directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, and their Spouses and
minor Children    

NONE OF DIRECTORS, CEO, CFO, COMPANY SECRETARY AND THEIR SPOUSES AND MINOR CHILDREN HAS 
TRADED IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY DURING THE YEAR.    
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CREDIT RATING

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has maintained the long-term and short-term entity ratings of 
TPL Properties Limited (TPL) at "A+" (Single A plus) and "A1" (A one) respectively with a stable outlook. These ratings 
denote a low expectation of credit risk emanating from a strong capacity for timely payment of financial 
commitments.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

We have been able to operate efficiently because of the culture of professionalism, creativity, integrity and 
continuous improvement in all functional areas and the efficient utilization of all resources for sustainable growth. 
We place appreciation on the contributions made and committed services rendered by the employees of the 
Company at various levels. Above all we express gratitude for the continuous assistance and support received from 
the investors, tenants, bankers, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Ali Jameel       Jameel Yusuf S.St

Chief Executive Officer      Chairman

Directors’ Report
For the year ended June 30, 2020
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Independent Auditors’ Review Report
To the members of TPL Properties Limited
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations), prepared by the Board of Directors of TPL Properties 
Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2020 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 
36 of the Regulations.  

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s 
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any 
non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the 
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the 
Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. 
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks 
and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate 
governance procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party 
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the 
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of Audit 
Committee. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the 
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2020.

Chartered Accountants 
Place: Karachi
Date: October 5, 2020
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Statement of Compliance with
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

NOTE: For the purposes of the rounding up of fraction, the Company has not rounded up the fraction as one since as it 
currently stands, the Board has adequate Independent Directors. If we compare the number of Non-Executive Directors i.e. 
6 Directors, as compared to Executive Directors i.e. 2 Directors, the Company is of the view that the Board under the current 
composition is adequately independent. Moreover, the same fraction application has been done to determine the ratio of 
Executive Directors to ensure consistency.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, 
including the Company. 

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures. 

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates 
on which they were approved or amended has been maintained by the Company. 

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by 
Board/ Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (“Act”) and the Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance), 2019 (“Regulations”).

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a Non-Executive Director 
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations 
with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board of Directors.

8. The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for the remuneration of Directors in 
accordance with the Act and these Regulations. 

9. The Board has duly complied with the Directors’ Training Program requirement and the criteria as prescribed in 
the Listed Companies Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019.

 Male Female

 7 1

 Category Names

Independent Director  Mr. Ziad Bashir
  Mr. Abdul Wahab M. Halabi

Executive Directors  Mr. Ali Jameel
  Ms. Sabiha Sultan Ahmed

Non-Executive Directors  Mr. Jameel Yusuf
  Mr. Siraj Dadabhoy
  Vice Admiral (R) Mohammad Shafi, Hi(M)
  Mr. Fawad Anwar

Name of company   TPL Properties Limited

Year ended:   June 30, 2020

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: 

1. The total number of Directors are eight (08) as per the following: 

2. The composition of the Board is as follows: 
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10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements 
of the Regulations.

11. The Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer have duly endorsed the financial statements before 
approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably qualified and experienced 
for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company. 

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the 
quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any 
of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm 
and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of 
ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not close relative 
(spouse, parents, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, 
head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the Company. 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 
except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have 
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard. 

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have been 
complied with. 

Jameel Yusuf S.St
Chairman

Name of Committee Frequency of Meeting

Audit Committee 4 meetings were held during the Year. The meetings
 of the Audit Committee are held on quarterly basis

HR and Remuneration Committee 2 meetings were held during the Year. The meeting
 of the HR and Remuneration Committee is held on 
 yearly basis. 

Audit Committee Mr. Ziad Bashir – Chairman

 Mr. Siraj Dadabhoy – Member

 Vice Admiral (R) Muhammad Shafi -  Member
 Mr. Yousuf Zohaib Ali – Secretary

 

HR and Remuneration Committee Mr. Abdul Wahab M. Halabi– Member

 Mr. Fawad Anwar - Member

 Mr. Ali Jameel – Member 

 Mr. Nader Nawaz – Secretary

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid Committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 
Committee for compliance. 

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following: 
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the members of TPL Properties Limited
Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of TPL Properties Limited (the 
Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, the 
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, 
the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of 
our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, 
the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows 
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the 
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 
June 2020 and of the profit, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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KKey audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

1. Valuation of investment property held for sale 

 
The Company’s investment property (“IP”) held for sale 
constitutes the Centerpoint Project which is located in Karachi, 
principally comprising rented office premises. As disclosed in 
note 7.1 (to be read with note 7.5) to the accompanying 
unconsolidated financial statements the IP amounts to Rs. 7,617 
million and constitutes 75% of the total assets of the Company. 
The IP is recorded as non-current asset held for sale under fair 
value model in accordance with applicable financial reporting 
framework, and accordingly, a fair value gain of Rs. 292 million has 
been recorded by the Company during the year on account of its 
fair valuation which was performed by an independent external 
property valuer.  
 
We identified valuation of the IP held for sale as a key audit matter 
because of the significance of IP held for sale to the total assets of 
the Company and because the determination of the fair values 
involves significant judgement and estimation, particularly in 
selecting the appropriate valuation methodology, market 
projections and market rents. 
 

 
Our audit procedures amongst others comprised of: 

 We assessed the competence of the management 
independent external valuer and reviewed the valuation 
report prepared by them to understand the basis and 
methodology of the valuation; 

  
 Involved EY’s external valuer to assess the appropriateness 

of assumptions and estimates used by management’s 
independent valuer in terms of estimated selling price, 
occupancy, condition, market projections and currency 
valuation; 

  
 Reviewed underlying evidences including but not limited to 

Board of Directors approval, sale agreement etc. related to 
decision for sale of Centerpoint project to an independent 
third party; 

  
 We evaluated the conditions as per International Financial 

Reporting Standard (IFRS) 5 - ‘Non-current Assets Held for 
Sale and Discontinued Operations’, for classifying the 
investment property as non-current assets held for sale; and 

  
 Assessed the adequacy of the presentation and disclosures 

in the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements 
in respect of the investment property held for sale in 
accordance with approved financial and reporting 
standards. 

2. Scheme of Amalgamation 

 
(Refer note 1.5 to the accompanying unconsolidated financial 
statements) 
 
The principal activity of the Company is to invest, purchase, 
develop and build real estate and to sell, rent out or otherwise 
dispose-off in any manner the real estate including commercial 
and residential buildings, houses, shops, plots or other premises. 
On 26 February 2020, the Scheme of Amalgamation was 
approved to merge the Company and the building maintenance 
services business of wholly owned subsidiary CenterPoint 
Management Services (Private) Limited (CPMS) along with all its 
associated assets, liabilities and obligation of CPMS on the 
effective date i.e. 01 July 2019. 
 
Due to significance of this event and its impact on the Company’s 
financial position and performance, we considered this a key 
audit matter. 

 
Our audit procedures amongst others included: 

 reviewed the Scheme of Amalgamation and 
checked its approval by the Board of Directors (the Board) 
of each amalgamating Company; 

  
 obtained the certified true copy of the Board’s resolution 

approving the Scheme. 
  
 considered the accounting implications of implementing 

the Scheme, in particular, the basis of determining the 
assets and liabilities transferred to the Company; and 

  
 reviewed the adequacy of related disclosures in the 

financial statements in accordance with the financial 
reporting standards. 
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Information Other than the unconsolidated financial statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our 
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the unconsolidated financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the unconsolidated financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
 
l Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
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as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

 
l Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

l Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
 estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

l Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

l Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
 
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 

(XIX of 2017);
 
b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of 

comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the 
unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in 
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of 
account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 
purpose of the Company’s business; and 

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Shariq Ali Zaidi. 

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi
Date: October 05, 2020
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Unconsolidated Statement of
Financial Position
As at June 30, 2020

Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director

22019
Note

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Operating 5 stessa dexif 3,885,426               4,910,671                 
Intang 6stessa elbi 452,069                 602,759                     
Investment property 7 228,308,153          6,874,579,344        
Long 8stnemtsevni mret- 760,824,800       1,112,724,790        
Long 9seiraidisbus ot snaol mret- 1,076,874,088    712,505,944           
Long-term dep 01stiso 2,786,919              286,919                     
Interest accrued 94,784,036          33,241,949              

1,967,915,491    8,738,852,376        
CURRENT ASSETS
Tools 963,751                 -                                

11stnanet morf selbavieceR 120,040,829       24,386,706              
Loans, advances, prepay 21selbaviecer rehto dna stnem 446,563,917          56,171,977              
Due from a related p 31seitra 11,039,600             215,194,817           
Taxation - net 118,504,976       133,456,751           

41tnemtsevni mret-trohS 396,823                 124,200                     
51secnalab knab dna hsaC 225,132,134       209,486,831           

512,642,030       638,821,282           

Non-current asset held for sale 7.5 77,617,000,000    -                                

TOTAL ASSETS 10,097,557,521   9,377,673,658         

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised capital
400,000,000 (2019: 400,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 4,000,000,000      4,000,000,000         

Issued, subscribed and paid-up cap 61lati 33,273,931,063    3,273,931,063        

Capital reserve (404,845,756)      21,746,162              

Revenue reserve 3,569,183,065    3,292,202,994        
6,438,268,372    6,587,880,219        

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
71sgnicnanif mret-gnoL 2,582,437,440      1,998,762,771         
81ten - ytilibail xat derrefeD 15,808,675            17,188,200               

2,598,246,115    2,015,950,971        
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other pay 91selba 1165,707,150       43,508,589              
Accrued expenses 29,523,233            6,047,421                  
Due to related p 02 seitra 22,206,298          10,385,612              
Accrued mark-up 21 1104,486,276       89,955,997              
Short-term borrowing 22s 4400,000,000       400,000,000           
Current portion of long-term financing 71s 1191,117,792       110,000,000           

32stnanet morf secnavdA 148,002,285       113,944,849           
1,061,043,034    773,842,468           

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,097,557,521   9,377,673,658         

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Rupees

20202020
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Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director

Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2020

20192019

Rupees

20202020

Note

Income 25 6678,368,219           402,594,669              

62stsoc gnitarepo tceriD (216,976,812)         (11,609,104)               

Gross profit 461,391,407           390,985,565              

72sesnepxe lareneg dna evitartsinimdA (137,620,939)         (104,823,797)            

82stsoc ecnaniF (419,071,628)         (267,247,691)            

92emocni rehtO 372,824,501           733,307,533              

Profit before taxation 277,523,341           752,221,610              

03noitaxaT (543,270)                  (22,159,772)               

Profit for the year 276,980,071           730,061,838              

Other comprehensive income for the year - net of tax --                              -                                  

Total comprehensive income for the year 276,980,071           730,061,838              

Basic and diluted earnings per share 31 00.85                           2.23                                

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director

Unconsolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2020

RRevenue
reserve

Balance at June 30, 2018 2,735,113,670    560,563,555 -                            2,562,141,156    5,857,818,381   

Issuance of bonus shares @ Rs.10 per share 538,817,393       (538,817,393) -                               -                             -                            

Profit for the year -                          -                        -                        730,061,838        730,061,838       
Other comprehensive income

-xat fo ten - raey eht rof                            -                          -                          -                             -                            

Total comprehensive income for the year -                           -                          -                          730,061,838         730,061,838        

Balance at June 30, 2019 3,273,931,063  21,746,162        -                        3,292,202,994    6,587,880,219   

Reserve created under scheme of 
amalgamation (note 1.5) --                         -                        (426,591,918)    -                          (426,591,918)     

Profit for the year --                         -                        -                        276,980,071        276,980,071      
Other comprehensive income

for the year - net of tax --                         -                        -                        -                          -                         

Total comprehensive income for the year --                         -                        -                        276,980,071        276,980,071      

Balance at June 30, 2020 3,273,931,063  21,746,162        (426,591,918)    3,569,183,065    6,438,268,372   

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

--------------------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------------------- 

Share
premium
account

Issued, 
subscribed and 
paid up capital

Accumulated 
profits Total

Capital 
reserves

Reserve under 
scheme of 

amalgamation
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Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director

Unconsolidated Statement of
Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2020

Annual Report 2019-20 63

2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note

Profit before taxation 277,523,341 752,221,610

2020

Adjustments for non-cash items:
72noitaicerpeD 3,611,320              2,534,302                 
72noitazitromA 150,690                 150,690                     
82stsoc ecnaniF 419,071,628 267,247,691            
92stnuocca sgnivas no pu-kraM (12,098,997)          (33,252,590)             
92seiraidisbus ot naol mret-gnol no pu-kraM (61,292,126)          7,576,198                 

Allowance for expected credit losses 1155,022                 -                               
92sdnuf lautum ni tnemtsevni no niag desilaernU (370,021)                -                               
92sdnuf lautum ni tnemtsevni fo lasopsid no niaG (2,791,879)             (5,583,720)                
92ytreporp tnemtsevni no niag eulav riaF (292,165,699)        (666,992,964)           

54,269,938           (428,320,393)           
Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Tools 107,600 -                               
Receivables from tenants (24,138,769)          21,032,666               
Loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables 113,801,497           (30,774,326)             
Short-term investments 389,277                 99,875,800               
Due from a related parties 217,662,632         (214,862,834)           

207,822,237         (124,728,694)           
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 96,732,402           (2,638,017)                
Accrued expenses 14,765,994           (3,799,240)                
Due to related parties 4,569,237              2,308,906                 
Advance from tenants (4,527,150)             42,133,628               

111,540,483         38,005,277               

Cash flows generated from operations 651,155,999         237,177,800            

Finance cost paid (404,541,349)        (234,765,644)           
Markup on saving accounts received 111,849,036           33,252,590               
Income tax paid - net of refund 27,007,635           (72,737,677)             

Net cash flows generated from / (used in) operating activities 285,471,321         (37,072,931)             

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES*

5stessa dexif gnitarepo ot snoitiddA (1,559,029)             (2,364,274)                
7ssergorp-ni-krow latipac ot snoitiddA -                           (4,034,487)                
7ytreporp tnemtsevni ot snoitiddA (87,836,349)          (13,916,864)             

Long-term loan to subsidiaries - net ((661,805,788)        (279,999,069)           
Investment in subsidiaries (1,100,000)             (51,000,000)             

Proceeds from disposal of investment in mutual funds
Purchase of investments in mutual funds

         -
-

                               
Proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidary            

12,500,0
-

00 
94,174,320               

Net cash flows used in investing activities (749,801,166)        (257,140,374)           

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES*
Long-term financings - net 477,543,239         (36,889,058)             
Net cash flows generated from / (used in)  financing activities 477,543,239         (36,889,058)             

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13,213,394           (331,102,363)           

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2209,486,831 540,589,194            
Cash and cash equivalents transferred under the Scheme 1.5 22,431,909 -                               

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 2225,132,134 209,486,831

*No non-cash items are included in investing and financing activities

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Rupees

(10,000) 
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11.  LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1

1.2 Geographical location and address of the business premises

Purpose
Head office and rented premises

1.3

Name Relationship
Common 

Directorship
Percentage of 
Shareholding

%09.12seYynapmoc tneraP]LCT[ detimiL proC LPT

TPL Holdings (Private) Limited [THL] Ultimate Parent company Yes 8.61%

-seYynapmoc detaicossA]LTT[ detimiL rekkarT LPT

%29.2seYynapmoc detaicossA]LIT[ detimiL ecnarusnI LPT

TPL Security Services (Private) Limited [TPLS] Associated company Yes 0.018%

TPL Maps (Private) Limited [TMP] Associated company Yes -

TPL Rupiya (Private) Limited [TPLR] Associated company Yes -

-seYynapmoc detaicossA]ILT[ detimiL ecnarusnI efiL LPT

TPL Property Management (Private) Limited 
[TPLPM]

Subsidiary company Yes 99.99%

TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited [TPLLP] Subsidiary company Yes 99.99%

%00.08seYynapmoc yraidisbuS]CKH[ detimiL )etavirP( CKH

%99.99seYynapmoc yraidisbuS]81-G[ detimiL )etavirP( 81-G

TPL REIT Management Company Limited Subsidiary company Yes 99.99%

%04.5A/NnamriahCfusuY leemaJ .rM

%10.7A/NreciffO evitucexE feihCleemaJ ilA dammahuM .rM

-A/NreciffO gnitarepO feihCrehgsA ilA .rM

-A/NreciffO laicnaniF feihCinazaK niddurdaB mihaR .rM

TPL Properties Limited - Employees' Provident 
Fund

Retirement Benefit Fund N/A -

TPL Properties Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on February 14, 2007
under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). In 2016, the Company had changed its
status from private limited company to public company and was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The
principal activity of the Company is to invest, purchase, develop and build real estate and to sell, rent out or otherwise
dispose offin any manner the real estate including commercial and residential buildings, houses, shops, plots or other
premises. The registered office of the Company is situated at Centrepoint Building, Off Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, near
KPT Interchange Flyover, Karachi. TPL Corp Limited and TPL Holdings (Private) Limited are the Parent and Ultimate
Parent Company respectively, as of reporting date.

The Company has had transactions or had agreements and / or arrangements in place during the reporting period with
the following related parties:

AddressAddress
Shaheed-e-Milllat Expressway, near KPT Interchange, Karachi.
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11.4

1.5

Details of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at 01 July 2019 are as under:

2019

Note Rupees 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

328,357,193  tnempiuqe dna tnalp ,ytreporP                     
Long-term deposits 2,500,000                          
Deferred tax asset - net 114,024,864                    

508,278,687                    
CURRENT ASSETS

Tools 1,071,351
673,076,17 secivres rehto dna ecnanetniam tsniaga elbavieceR

Advances and prepayments 4,193,437
Due from related party 3,507,415
Taxation – net 22,992,008
Cash and bank balances 2,431,909

105,866,496

TOTAL ASSETS 614,145,183                    

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-terrm loan 297,437,644
Long-term financing 132,249,222

429,686,866
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 25,466,159
Accrued expenses 8,709,834
Accrued mark-up 7,251,449

000,000,55gnicnanif mret-gnol fo noitrop tnerruC
685,485,83secivres rehto dna ecnanetniam tsniaga ecnavdA

135,012,028

TOTAL LIABILTIES 564,698,894

NET ASSETS MERGED AS OF 01 JULY 2019 49,446,289                       

ADJUSTMENTS:
- Cost of investment held in CPMS as of 01 July 2019 (353,000,000)                   

)702,830,321(stnemtsujda detaler xat derrefed dna tnerruC -                    
(476,038,207)                   

RESERVE UNDER SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION (426,591,918)                   

These unconsolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company, in which investment in
the subsidiary companies namely G-18 (Private) Limited, TPL REIT Management Company Limited, HKC (Private)
Limited, TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited and TPL Property Management (Private) Limited have been accounted for at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. In addition, the Company also prepares consolidated financial
statements.

The Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company in a meeting held on February 26, 2020 approved, in principle, the
merger of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary Centerpoint Management Services (Private) Limited (CPMS) in
accordance with the terms of a Scheme of Arrangement approved by SECP under the provisions of Section 284 sub-
section (1) clause (5) of the Companies Act 2017. Pursuant to the merger, the entire undertaking comprising all the assets,
liabilities and obligations of CPMS, as at July 01, 2019, stood merged with, transferred to, vested in, and assumed by TPLP
against no consideration and accordingly, CPMS ceased to exist as a separate legal entity.The merger was accounted for
in the books using 'pooling ofinterest' method as it was a business combination of entities under common control and
therefore, scoped out of IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’. The net assets of CPMS has been acquired after certain
adjustments as of July 01, 2019, and has been accounted for in the financial statements with corresponding impact
directly in equity under ‘Reserve under scheme of amalgamation’. 
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22 IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) has disrupted commercial and economic activities all around the
world and has impacted almost every organization and industry. The operations and results of the Company mainly
impacted in the later part of financial year due to lockdown situation around the region. The outbreak still continues to
progress and evolve, therefore, it is challenging now to predict the full extent and duration ofits business and economic
impact. However, up to the date of authorisation of these financial statements,the operations and results of the company
have not been materially impacted by COVID -19 pandemic.

3 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of preparation

4.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations adopted during the year

New and Amended Standards

IFRS-9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments)
IFRS-14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS-16 Leases
IFRS-16 COVID 19 Related Rent Concessions (Amendments)
IAS-19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments)
IAS-28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments)
IFRIC-23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments

IFRS-3 Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint operation 
IFRS-11 Joint Arrangements - Previously held Interests in a joint operation
IAS-12 Income Taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments classified as equity 
IAS-23 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation 

IFRS 16 – Leases

The adoption of the above standards, amendments, interpretations and improvements to the accounting standards did
not have any material effect on the Company's financial statements except for IFRS 16. The impact of adoption of IFRS 16
and its amendments are described below:

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2015-2017 cycle)

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating
Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise
stated.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are consistent with
those of the previous financial year except as described below:

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by International Accounting
Standard Board (IASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and provisions of and directives issued under the
Act, and Islamic Financial and Accounting Standards (IFAS). Where the provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017 have been followed.

The Company has adopted the following revised standards and amendments of IFRSs which became effective for the
current year:
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standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure ofleases and requires
lessees to account for most leases under a single on-balance sheet model. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in IAS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16 does not have any impact for leases where the Company is lessor.
Whereas, for lessees all leases will be classified as finance leases only.

The Company adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date ofinitial application of
01 July 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect ofinitially applying
standard recognized at the date ofinitial application. The Company elected to use the transition practical expedient
allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 as of 01
July 2019. The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement
date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option (‘short-term leases’), and lease
contracts for which the underlying asset is oflow value (‘low-value assets’). As at 01 July 2019, the Company do not have
significant impact of adoption of IFRS 16, as the Company is acting as lessor in all its lease arrangements.

44.3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

a) Fair value of investment property

b) Recognition of tax and deferred tax

4.4 Operating fixed assets 

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies. Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are
based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
and in any future periods affected.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,
estimates and assumptions which are significant to these unconsolidated financial statements:

The Company carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. An independent valuation specialist
is engaged by the Company to assess fair value ofinvestment property based on values with reference to market-
based evidence, using comparable prices adjusted for specific market factors such as nature, location and
condition of the property.

The provision for taxation is accounted for by the Company after taking into account the relevant laws and
decisions taken by appellate authorities. Instances, where the Company's view differs from the view taken by the
tax authorities at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature
is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities / assets.

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is
recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income applying the straight-line
method. Depreciation on additions during the year is charged from the month of addition, whereas, depreciation on
disposals is charged upto the month in which the disposal takes place.

Rates of depreciation which are disclosed in note 5 to these unconsolidated financial statements are designed to write-off
the cost over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Major renewals and improvements for assets are capitalized, if recognition criteria is met and the assets so replaced, if any,
are retired. Maintenance and normal repairs are recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Other areas where judgments, estimates and assumptions involved are disclosed in respective notes to the
unconsolidated financial statements.
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44.5 Intangible assets

Assets residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each reporting 
date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss on derecognition of an asset represented by the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income

Intangible assets other than goodwill, customers related intangible assets and marketing related intangible assets are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill, customers related
intangible assets and marketing related intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, as
their useful life is indefinite and are tested for impairment annually. For other intangibles, amortisation is charged to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income applying the straight line method, whereby, the cost of
intangible asset is written off over its useful economic life. The amortisation rate of the intangible assets are stated in note
6.1 to these financial statements. Full month's amortisation is charged in the month of addition when the asset is available
for use, whereas, amortisation on disposals is charged upto the month in which the disposal takes place.

Intangible assets under development are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. It consists of
expenditure incurred in respect ofintangible assets under development in the course of their acquisition, erection,
development and installation. The assets are transferred to relevant category ofintangible assets when they are available
for use.

4.6 Investment property

Investment property comprises completed property and property under construction that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or both.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value which reflects market condition at reporting
date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values are included in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise, including the corresponding tax effect, if any. Fair values
are determined based on an annual valuation performed by an accredited independent valuer.

Investment property under construction is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the
cost ofland acquired for the development of project and other purchase cost, related government taxes, construction
cost, borrowing cost and other overheads necessary to bring the premises for capital appreciation or rental earnings. 

Investment property is derecognised when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the derecogntition ofinvestment property are
recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the year of retirement or
disposal. Gain or loss on the disposal ofinvestment property are determined as the difference between net disposal
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements, if any, are capitalized, if recognition criteria is met.

Investment property is measured initially at cost including transaction costs. Transaction costs include transfer taxes,
professional fees for legal services and initial leasing commissions to bring the property to the condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating. The carrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property
at the time that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria is met.

Transfers are made to or from the investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment
property to owner-occupied, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If
owner occupied property becomes an investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under property, plant and equipment upto the date of change in use.
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44.7 Non-current assets held for sale

4.8 Leases - Company as lessor

4.9 Investment in subsidiaries

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and
is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The Company classifies non-current assets (principally investment property) as held for sale if their carrying amounts will
be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets classified as
held for sale (except for investment property measured at fair value) are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset,
excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or
disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should
indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn.
Management must be committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale is expected to be completed within one year
from the date of the classification.

Investment property held for sale continues to be measured at fair value (note 7.5). Assets and liabilities classified as held
for sale are presented separately in the statement of financial position.

4.10 Impairment of non-financial assets and investments in subsidiaries 

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually at year end and when the circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each cash generating unit
(CGU) or group of CGUs to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of CGU is less than its carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. The fair value
less costs to sell calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs to sell of the asset. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at year end either individually or at the CGU
level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In determining fair value less costs to sell, the recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other fair value indicators.
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44.11 Tools

4.12 Cash and cash equivalents

4.13 Foreign currency translations

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost and are defined as cash in hand, cash at banks and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cheques in hand and
bank balances.

The unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the exchange rates ruling on the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates of
exchange ruling at the reporting date. Any resulting gain or loss arising from changes in exchange rates is taken to the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions.

Impairment losses relating to goodwill are not reversed in future periods.

Tools are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, except items in transit, which are stated at
cost. Tools are charged to cost of goods sold on an estimated consumption pattern.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale.

4.14 Staff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan

4.15 Financial instruments

4.15.1 Financial assets 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

The Company operates a recognised provident fund (defined contribution scheme) for its permanent employees who
have completed the minimum qualifying period of service. Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Company
and the employees at the rate of 8.33 percent of the basic salary.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables, the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade debts are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.
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bb) Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

i) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 
ii) Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments) 
iii)

iv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

i) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Company measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

-

-

ii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (debt instruments) 

-  

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. The Company’s business model for
managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments) 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash 
flows and selling; and 

- 

iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is
recycled to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. 

The Company does not have any debt instruments at fair value through OCI investments during the current and last year 
and as of reporting date.
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iiv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

c) Derecognition

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 

-

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair
value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent ofits continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the unconsolidated statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s unconsolidated statement of financial position) when:

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to
repay.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the
right of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of
the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 

The Company does not have any equity instruments at fair value through OCI investments during the current and last
year and as of reporting date.

d) Impairment

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms. 
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ee) Financial liabilities 

i) Initial recognition and measurement

ii) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

iii) Loans and borrowings 

f) Derecognition 

g) Offsetting of financial instruments 

4.16 Taxation

Current

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date
of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at
fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

For trade debts, rent and other receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.  

The Company’s financial liabilities include long term financing short term borrowings, due to related parties, accrued
mark-up and trade and other payables.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.  

Provision for current taxation is computed on taxable income at the current rates of taxation, after taking into account tax
credits and rebates available, if any, in accordance with the provision of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. It also includes
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DDeferred 

4.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when:

a) the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events;
b) it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
c) a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

4.18 Borrowing costs

4.19 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

4.20 Revenue recognition

a) Revenue from operating lease arrangements

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, while deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, carry forwards of unused
tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. However, for income covered under final tax regime, taxation is
based on applicable tax rates under such regime.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
and liabilities and they relate to the income tax levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised directly in the other comprehensive income is recognised in the other
comprehensive income and not in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the
reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences arising at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Borrowing and other related costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the unconsolidated financial statements in the period, in which
these are approved. However, if these are approved after the reporting period but before the unconsolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, they are disclosed in the notes to the unconsolidated financial statements.

Provision for current taxation is computed on taxable income at the current rates of taxation, after taking into account tax
credits and rebates available, if any, in accordance with the provision of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. It also includes
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ii) Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment property is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease term and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature, except for contingent
rental income which is recognised when it arises. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

ii) Rent receivables

iii) Advance from tenants

b) Revenue from contracts with tenants

i) Revenue from services to tenants

ii)  Receivable against services

iii) Contractual liabilites

In respect of the revenue component, these services represent a series of daily services that are individually satisfied over
time because the tenants simultaneously receive and consume the benefits provided by the Company. The Company
applies the time elapsed method to measure progress. The consideration charged to tenants for these services is based
on an agreed rates specified in the services arrangements. The variable consideration only relates to the non-lease
component and is allocated to each distinct period of service (i.e., each day) as it meets the variable consideration
allocation exception criteria.

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the passage of
time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets as disclosed
in note 4.15.1 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

Amounts received from tenants to terminate leases or to compensate for dilapidations are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the right to receive them arises.

Rent receivables are recognised at their original invoiced value except where the time value of money is material, in which
case rent receivables are recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Refer to accounting
policies on financial assets as dislcosed in note 4.15.1 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

The Company is providing buidling management services to tenants such services include maintenance services,
electricity and conditioning service and other IT services. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised over the
peirod when the services to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange of services.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised over the time when the servicves are rendered to the customers,
generally over the contract. These services are specified in a separate service arrangement with the tenants and invoiced
separately.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the

Lease incentives that are paid or payable to the lessee are deducted from lease payments. Accordingly, tenant lease
incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The lease
term is the non-cancellable period of the lease together with any further term for whichthe tenant has the option to
continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease, the Group is reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that
option.

Advance from tenants against rent is charged to unconsolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income based on contractual arrangements with the tenants.
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cc) Other revenue

4.21 Contract liabilities

Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under
the contract

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest rate method and other revenues are recorded on
accrual basis.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under
the contract

4.22 Earnings per share

4.23 Share capital

4.24

Effective date 
(annual periods

Standard or Interpretation beginning on or after)

IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments) January 01, 2022

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments) January 01, 2020

Not yet finalized
IAS 1/ IAS 8 Definition of Material (Amendments) January 01, 2020
IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IAS 37 Onerous Contracts – Costs of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments) January 01, 2022

The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standards or
interpretations:

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or
interpretation:

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective 

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor 
 and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment)

IFRS 9/ IAS 
39 / IFRS 7
IFRS 10 / IAS 
28
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IImprovements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2018-20 20 cycle)

IFRS 9 January 01, 2022

2202 ,10 yraunaJstnemerusaem eulav riaf ni noitaxaT – erutlucirgA14 SAI

IASB Effective date 
(annual periods

Standard beginning on or after)

IFRS 17 – Insurance Contracts January 01, 2023

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of
applicability in Pakistan.

The Company expects that above new standards will not have any material impact on the Company’s unconsolidated
financial statements in the period of initial application.

Financial Instruments – Fees in the ’10 percent’ test for 
derecognition of financial liabilities

The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framework) in
March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020 for preparers of financial
statements who develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework
is not a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The
purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent
accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the
standards.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of
applicability in Pakistan. The management of the Company expects that below new standards will not have any material
impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.

5 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

WRITTEN 
DOWN 
VALUE

As at        
July 01, 

2019

Additions / 
*transfer on 

amalgamation
As at        June 

30, 2020
As at July 01, 

2019

Charge 
for the year / 
*transfer on 

amalgamation

As at        June 
30,

2020

As at        
June 30, 

2020

Depre-
ciation

Rate
%

Furniture 55,838,600 -                        5,838,600       4,678,278 1,160,320 5,838,598       2 20

Equipment 11,174,000 160,529              1,334,529       19,567 533,888 553,455           781,074 20

Vehicles 66,270,932 -                        6,270,932       5,167,505 569,789 5,737,294       533,638 20

Computer and 
  accessories 33,498,060 1,326,500 9,957,364       2,166,006 1,202,104 7,473,868       2,483,496 33.33

5,132,804 * 4,105,758 *

Mobile phones 4463,646 72,000 535,646           303,211 145,219 448,430           87,216 50

2020 17,245,238 1,559,029 23,937,071 12,334,567 3,611,320 20,051,645 3,885,426
5,132,804 * 4,105,758 *

* Represents assets transferred under scheme of amalgamation (note 1.5) 

COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

------------------------------------------------ (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------
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55.1

6 INTANGIBLE ASSET

Depreciation for the year has been charged to administrative and general expenses in unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income (note 27).

WRITTEN 
DOWN 
VALUE

As at        
July 01, 

2018
Additions /
(disposal)

As at        June 
30, 2019

As at July 01, 
2018

Charge 
for the year / 

(disposal)

As at        June 
30,

2019

As at        
June 30, 

2019

Depre-
ciation

Rate
%

Furniture 5,838,600 -                          5,838,600         3,517,958 1,160,320 4,678,278         1,160,322 20

Equipment -                   1,174,000            1,174,000 -                                        19,567                  19,567               1,154,433 20

Vehicles 6,270,932 -                          6,270,932         4,632,875 534,630 5,167,505         1,103,427 20

Computer and 
  accessories 2,529,432 968,628 3,498,060         1,475,745 690,261 2,166,006         1,332,054 33.33

Mobile phones 242,000 221,646 463,646            173,687 129,524 303,211            160,435 50

2019 14,880,964 2,364,274 17,245,238 9,800,265 2,534,302 12,334,567 4,910,671

COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

------------------------------------------------ (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------

%

Computer software 753,449       -                        753,449           150,690                  150,690             301,380           452,069         20

%

Computer software 753,449        -                          753,449 -                                           150,690               150,690            602,759          20

---------------- (Rupees) ---------------- ---------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------

NET BOOK 
VALUE

Amortis
ation 
rate

At 01 July 
2018 Additions

At 30 June 
2019

Charge for the 
year 

At 30 June 
2019

At 30 June 
2019

COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION

At 01 July 
2018

---------------- (Rupees) ---------------- ---------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------

NET BOOK 
VALUE

Amortis
ation 
rate

At 01 July 
2019 Additions

At 30 June 
2020

Charge for the 
year 

At 30 June 
2020

At 30 June 
2019

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATIONCOST

At 01 July 
2019

22002200 2019

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTY Note

2.7 & 1.7ytreporp tnemtsevnI -                           6,846,271,191       

6.7noitcurtsnoc rednu ytreporp tnemtsevnI 28,308,153           28,308,153              

28,308,153           6,874,579,344       

7.1 The movement in investment property during the year is as follows:

As at July 01 66,846,271,191     6,165,361,363       

Add: Additions during the year 887,836,349           13,916,864              

WDV of assets acquired under scheme of arrangement 1.5 3390,726,761        -                               

7,324,834,301     6,179,278,227       

3.7tnemtsujda eulav riaf morf niaG 292,165,699        666,992,964           

7,617,000,000     6,846,271,191       
Less: Non-current assets held for sale (refer note 7.5) ((7,617,000,000) -                              
Investment property as at June 30 --                           6,846,271,191       

 Rupees
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7.2

7.3

7.4 Forced sale value of the investment property as at June 30, 2020 is Rs. 6,855,300,000/- (2019: Rs. 6,514,222,500/-).

7.5

7.6 Represents expenses incured on various projects of the Company related to the contruction of investment property.

The movement in capital work-in-progress 22002200 2019

during the year is as follows:

As at July 01 228,308,153           24,273,666              

              

Additions during the year --                           4,034,487                 

As at June 30 228,308,153           28,308,153              

8 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Note

Investments in subsidiary companies – at cost

1.8detimiL )etavirP( CKH 708,724,800        708,724,800

Centerpoint Management Services (Private) Limited 1.5 --                            352,999,990           

2.8detimiL )etavirP( 81-G 1,000,000              1,000,000                 

3.8detimiL ynapmoC tnemeganaM TIER LPT 50,000,000           50,000,000              

4.8detimiL )etavirP( tnemeganaM ytreporP LPT 1,000,000              -                               

5.8detimiL )etavirP( kraP citsigoL LPT 100,000                 -                               

760,824,800        1,112,724,790       

8.1

Investment property comprises ofleasehold land having area of 2,914 square yards and building thereon, situated at
66/3-2, Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, near KPT Interchange Flyover, Karachi, hereinafter refered to as Centrepoint
Project. 

A valuation of Centrepoint Project was carried out by an independent professional valuer on June 30, 2020 and the fair
value was determined with reference to market based evidence, active market prices and relevant information. The fair
value of investment property fall under level 2 of fair value hierarchy (i.e. significant observable inputs).

------------- Rupees -------------

The Company holds 7,584,000 (2019: 7,584,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each, representing 80 percent (2019: 80
percent) of the share capital of HKC which was incorporated in Pakistan as of the reporting date. HKC is engaged in the
acquisition and development of real estates and renovation of buildings and letting out. As of reporting date, HKC has not
generated revenue as it is in the process of initiation of developing the property.

Subsequent to year end, the Company in its Board of Directors meeting held on August 19, 2020, after giving due
consideration, has approved the sale of the Company’s flagship project “Centrepoint” located off Shaheed-e-Millat

transaction is subject to execution of appropriate legal agreements, completion of necessary formalities and obtaining of
all necessary approvals and consents. The decision was taken keeping in mind the best interest of the shareholders. The
transaction is expected to close by March 2021. The Company plans to use sale proceed to invest in development of
high end office tower, hotel/service apartments and low income housing projects. Accordingly, the same has been
transferred to non-current assets held for sale on the face of the unconsolidated statement of financial position.

8.2

8.3

The Company holds 100,000 (2019: 100,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each, representing 99.99 percent (2019: 99.99
percent) of the share capital of the G-18 (Private) Limited, wholly owned subsidiary. G-18 is engaged in the acquisition
and take on lease of any area, house, land, building, structures and development, maintainence and disposal of the same.
As of reporting date, G-18 has not generated revenue as it is in the process of initiation of its operations.

The Company holds 5,000,000 (2019: 5,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each, representing 99.99 percent (2019:
99.99 percent) of the share capital of the TPL REIT Management Company Limited, wholly owned subsidiary. TPL REIT is
engaged in carrying on all or any business permitted to be carried out by a 'REIT management company' in accordance
with the Non-Banking Finance Comapnies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003. As of reporting date, TPL Reit has
not generated revenue as it is in the process of initiation of it operations.

Expressway Near KPT Interchange, Karachi to Bank Al-Habib Limited ( an independent third party) . The
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8.5

22002200 2019
9 LONG-TERM LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES – unsecured, Note

considered good

Centrepoint Management Services (Private) Limited 1.5 --                          297,437,644          
1.9detimiL )etavirP( CKH 476,874,088      415,068,300          

TPL Log 2.9detimiL )etavirP( kraP citsi 600,000,000      -                              
1,076,874,088     712,505,944           

9.1

22002200 2019
The movement in loan balance during the year is as follows:

As at July 01 4415,068,300      191,081,553          
Disbursements during the year 661,805,788          223,986,747          
As at June 30 4476,874,088        415,068,300           

9.2

During the year, the Company has established a wholly owned subsidiary, TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited, by virtue of
99.99% shareholding in the said company. TPL Logistic Park is engaged in the business of holding/parent company and
to coordinate and regulate the administration, finances, activities and business of the subsidiaries, shareholding interests
in other Companies and to carry out all such services in connection within. As of reporting date, TPL Logistic Park
(Private) Limited has not generated revenue as it is in the process of initiation of its operations.

During the year, the Company had entered into an agreement dated February 26, 2020, with TPL Logistics Park (Private)
Limited whereby a loan was granted of Rs. 600 million to be availed by subsidairy company from time to time on or before
February 26, 2027 for an equity investment in Security Packers (Private) Limited. It is repayable on or before February 26,
2027, including mark up at average borrowing rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 1.65% per annum and has an equity
conversion option at discretion of TPL Properties Limited.As of 30 June, 2020, the said facility is fully utilised by the
subsidiary. The Company, subsequent to year end, has signed an addendum with the TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited -
wholly owned subsidary, whereby, the interest amount on loan has been waived by the Company with effect from
February 26, 2020. As at reporting date, these have not been discounted as the effect of discounting would be immaterial
to these unconsolidated financial statements.

The maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year calculated by reference to month end balances was Rs.
600,000,000 (2019: Nil).

During the year, the Company has established a wholly owned subsidiary, TPL Property Management (Private) Limited,
by virtue of 99.99% shareholding in the said company. TPL Property Mangement is engaged the business of providing all
types of facilities management, maintenance and execution of contracts of all kinds and structure. As of reporting date,
TPL Property Mangement has not generated revenue as it is in the process of initiation of its operations.

Rupees 

The Company had entered into an agreement with HKC (Private) Limited under the agreement dated November 11,
2012, for granting loan to the associated company from time to time with unsecured facility amount of up to Rs. 1.5 billion
at average borrowing cost of the 6 months KIBOR plus 1.75% repayable after a period of 4 years, expiring on June 30,
2021 with pre-payment and extension option. The purpose of the loan to the associated company is to finance the
construction of new mixed-use project requiring construction, development and design expenses. The maximum
amount outstanding at any time during the year calculated by reference to month end balances was Rs. 476,874,088
(2019: Rs. 415,068,300).

Rupees 

22002200 2019
10 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS – unsecured, considered good Note

Security deposits:
-  City District Government Karachi 886,919                   86,919                      
-  Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 2200,000                200,000                    
-  Total PARCO Pakistan Limited - fuel cards 22,500,000              -                               

10.1 22,786,919              286,919                     

Rupees
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222002200 2019
Note Rupees

10.1 These deposits are non-interest bearing.

11 RECEIVABLES FROM TENANTS – 
    unsecured, considered good

Receivables against rent 11.1 774,078,762          24,386,706             

Receivables  against services
Receivables ag 2.11ecnanetniam tsnia 116,794,438          -                              
Receivables ag 3.11secivres rehto tsnia 226,088,143          -                              
Receivables against electricity and air conditioning services 11.4 33,234,508             -                              

46,117,089          -                              
5.11sessol tiderc detcepxe rof ecnawollA :sseL                 (155,022) -                               

11.6              45,962,067 -                               
120,040,829      24,386,706             

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5 Movement of allowance for expected credit loss on receivables 22002200 2019
is as follows: Note

5.1noitamaglama fo emehcs rednu refsnarT                   806,623                                     -   

Reversal for the year                (651,601)                                     -   
Closing balance                   155,022                                     -   

11.6

11.7

22002200 2019

TPL Trakker Limited 883,703,104           127,283,049           

TPL Insurance Limited 117,809,590           6,026,877                 

TPL Life Insurance Limited 665,410                    12,300                       
TPL Security Services (Pvt) Limited                         1,130                                     -   

TPL Logsitics Private Limited                         3,390                                     -   

This includes receivables from parties other than related parties amounting to Rs. 21.99 million (2019: Rs Nil) which is
past due but impaired. 

The maximum amount outstanding receivable from the related parties at any time during the year calculated by reference
to month end balances was as follows:

 Rupees 

Rupees 

This includes receivable from TPL trakker Limited amounting to Rs. Nil (2019: Rs. 7.85 million) and TPL Insurance Limited
amounting to Rs. Nil (2019: Rs. 15.35 million). This amount is neither past due nor impaired.

This includes receivable from TPL trakker Limited amounting to Rs. 4.23 million (2019: Nil) . This amount is neither past
due nor impaired.

This includes receivable from TPL trakker Limited amounting to Rs. 17.18 milion (2019: Nil) and TPL Insurance Limited
amounting to Rs. 1.12 million (2019: Nil). This amount is neither past due nor impaired.

This includes receivable from TPL trakker Limited amounting to Rs. 1.35 milion (2019: Nil), TPL Insurance Limited
amounting to Rs. 0.15 million (2019: Nil), TPL Life Insurance Limited amounting to Rs. 0.065 million (2019: Nil), TPL
Security Services (Private) Limited Rs. 0.001 million (2019: Nil), and TPL Logistics (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 0.003
million (2019: Nil). This amount is neither past due nor impaired.
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222002200 2019
12 LOAN, ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Note

Loans
Loan to employees 808,568                -                          

Advances – unsecured, considered good
Supp 1.21srotcartnoc dna sreil 21,109,918          40,414,474         
Others 12.2 115,000,000 10,000,000         

36,109,918          50,414,474         
Prepayments

Insurance 2,871,860             5,757,503            

Others - sales tax receivable 66,773,571             -                          
46,563,917          56,171,977         

12.1 These advances are non-interest bearing and generally on an average term of 1 to 12 months.

12.2

22002200 201913 DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 

Note– unsecured, considered good

Subsidiary companies
G-18 (Private) Limited 718,985                215,194,817      
TPL Property Management (Private) Limited 1116,770                -                          

835,755                215,194,817      
Associated companies
TPL Life Insurance Limited 203,845                -                          

13.1 11,039,600             215,194,817      

13.1

22002200 2019

G-18 (Private) Limited 718,985                215,194,817        

TPL Property Management (Private) Limited 1116,770                -                            

TPL Life Insurance Limited 203,845                -                            

22002200 201914 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
Note

Investments in mutual funds (designated at fair value through 
1.41)ssol ro tiforp 396,823                124,200                

396,823                124,200                

14.1 Investment in mutual funds - at fair value through profit or loss

2020 2019 Name of mutual funds
Carrying 

value
Fair value

Carrying 
value

Fair value

-                        AKD Securities Limited 3300,654    374,818       -                               -                            
1,158                   Pak Oman investment 110,639       10,673         60,691                       61,456                    
6,077                   NBP Monet Market Fund 111,319       11,332         59,972                       62,744                    
7,235                   3322,612    396,823       120,663                    124,200                  

Number of units

Rupees

 Rupees

These amounts are non-interest bearing and are receivable on demand. The maximum amount outstanding at any time during the
year calculated by reference to month end balances was as follows:

203                   

Rupees

This represents funds placed with Pearl Securities Limited for the purpose ofinvestments, which carries markup at the rate of 10% per
annum and is receivable on demand.

Rupees

2020 2019

5,578               

1,147               
6,928               
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20202020 2019
15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note

Cash in hand 243,623                476,068                

Cash at banks in local currency:
  - current accounts 2,014,359             32,424,807         
  - saving 1.51stnuocca s 224,073,689        176,585,956      

226,088,048        209,010,763      

Less: Allowance for exp 2.51sessol tiderc detce (1,199,537)           -                          

225,132,134        209,486,831      

15.1

15.2

16 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2020 2020 2019
Note

16.1 & 16.2 11,759,204,483    1,759,204,483   

other than cash        11,514,726,580    1,514,726,580   

327,393,106    3,273,931,063    3,273,931,063   

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

16.7 Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to their shareholding.

47,600,919 ordinary shares issued against purchase of 8,532,000 ordinary shares of HKC, constituting 90 percent of the issued,
subscribed and paid-up share capital of the subsidiary company under a share purchase arrangement dated: June 19, 2017 through
issuance of 47,600,919 shares of TPL Properties Limited at face value of Rs. 10 per share and premium of Rs. 6.75 per share on net
asset basis at their fair value determined on the date of acquisition i.e. March 30 2017.

13,675,568 bonus shares were issued of Rs. 10 each as fully paid bonus shares to the members in proportion of 0.5 shares for every
10 shares held (i.e. 5%) on August 16, 2018.

40,206,171 bonus shares were issued of Rs. 10 each as fully paid bonus shares to the members in proportion of 1.4 shares for every
10 shares held (i.e. 14%) on October 12, 2018.

 Rupees 

Included herein a cash deposit of Rs. 16.854 million under lien (note 24.2.1) and Rs. 100 million in a saving account placed with a
commercial bank carrying mark-up ranging 6 percent to 7 percent and 10.25 percent respectively. Other balances carry mark-up
ranging from 5.5 percent to 6.5 percent (2019: 3.75 percent to 5.8 percent) per annum.

2019

(No. of shares) (Rupees)

The represents allowance for expected credit loss on cash at bank balances, as a charge for the year amounting to Rs. 1,119,537
(2019: Nil).

 16.3, 16.4, 
16.5 & 16.6 

327,393,106  

158,010,000 ordinary shares were issued against acquisition of the business of A&A Associates, an unregistered partnership firm
under an agreement dated June 28, 2010 on net assets basis at their carrying value which approximates its fair value at the date of
acquisition i.e. May 31, 2010.

151,472,658  -  Issued for consideration 

Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each       
175,920,448  -  Issued for cash consideration

17,910,448 ordinary shares were issued to Alpha Beta Capital Markets (Private) Limited on 21 Jun 2017 against cash at premium of
Rs. 6.75 per share.

49,990,000 ordinary shares issued were against acquisition of the business of A&A Associates, an unregistered partnership firm under 
an agreement dated June 28, 2010 on net assets basis at their carrying value which approximates its fair value at the date of 
acquisition i.e. May 31, 2010.

175,920,448      
151,472,658      
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222002200 2019
17 LONG-TERM FINANCING Note

1.71setacifitrec ecnanif mreT 2,006,134,027 2,108,762,771    
Long 2.71ecnanif mret- 576,270,000     -                            

3.71 SMC rof ecnanif akarahsuM 132,249,222     -                            
JS Bank Limited - payroll financing 17.4 119,847,680        -                            
Diminishing Musharakah Arrang 5.71stneme 339,054,303        -                            

2,773,555,232 2,108,762,771    
Less: current portion shown under current liabilities ((191,117,792)  (110,000,000)      

2,582,437,440  1,998,762,771     

17.1

-

- First pari pasu charge on present and future fixed assets (plant, machinery, fixtures and fittings, etc.);
- First pari pasu charge charge over land and building with 25% margin; and
- Assignment over rental agreement; and

-

17.2

17.3

17.4

Rupees 

The Company entered into an agreement with a financial institution, dated March 14, 2018 , for the issuance of
redeemable capital in the amount of Rs. 3.5 billion in the form of Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) of the face value of Rs.
5,000/- each. Out of the total proposed issuance, the TFCs issued and TFCs proposed to be issued, are detailed as
follows:

sum equal to Rs. 2,200,000,000 as a first tranche (Series A TFC Issue) comprising of 440,000 TFCs, issued
during the previous year for the purpose of prepaying the outstanding Musharaka Facility in the amount of Rs.
1,796,000,000 availed by the Company; and for financing of the construction project of HKC (Private) Limited
(a Subsidiary Company). The amount received against issuance of Series A TFCs is repayable in semi-annual
installments for a period of 10 years at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 125 basis points. This facility was fully
drawn during last year and has been secured against the following:

sum equal to Rs. 1,300,000,000 as a second tranche (Series B TFC Issue), proposed to be issued for the
purpose of making an equity investment in upcoming new project/development.

The Company has availed the facilty of Rs. 600 million from a commerial bank through an agreement dated January 15,
2020. The purpose of availing the facility is to financing of equity instrument in TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited (wholly
owned subsidiary). The amount received is repayable in 20 equal quarterly installments for a period of 7 years (inclusive
of 2 years grace period) at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 165 basis points. The facility has been secured against the
following:

- First pari pasu charge on present and future fixed assets (plant, machinery, fixtures and fittings, etc.);
- First pari passu mortgage over land and building with 25% margin;
- A pari passu assignment over existing rental agreements;
- A pari passu assignment over existing contracts;
- A pari passu assignment over existing dividend income of the company (from HKC (Private) Limited);
- Exclusive assignment of existing dividend income of the company (from TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited); and

This facility was initially availed by Centrepoint Management Services (Private) Limited (CMSP) (wholly owned
subsidiary) [as at 01 July 2019, merged with the Company (note 1.5)]. CMSP entered into the Musharaka facility
agreement of Rs. 275 million with a commercial bank dated December 06, 2016. The purpose of the loan is to repay loan
from a director and loan from financial institutions. The amount received against the facility is repayable in semi-annual
installments for a period of 6 years at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 200 basis points. The facility has been secured
against the following:

- First hypo charge on present and future plant and machinery of CMS with 25% margin;
- Assignment over maintainance agreements including utilities, general maintainance and IT services; and
- Corporate guarantees of TPL Properties upto Rs 367 million.

The Company has availed the refinance scheme of Rs. 29.803 million from a commerial bank through an agreement
dated January 14, 2020. The purpose of availing the facility is to finance 3 months salaries of the workers and employees

- Lien over collection account Debt Payment Account and Debt Service Reserve Account
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business concerns for combating impact of COVID-19 under the SBP refinance scheme. The amount received is repayable
in 8 equal quarterly installments for a period of 2 years and 6 months (inclusive of 6 months grace period) at the rate of SBR
plus 3%. The facility has been secured against the following:

- First pari pasu charge on present and future fixed assets;
- First pari pasu charge on present and future current assets;
- Corporate guarantee of TPL Trakker Limited; and 
- Assignment of receivables from TPL Insurance Limited.

As at reporting date, these have not been discounted as the effect of discounting would be immaterial to these
unconsolidated financial statements. 

117.5

22002200 2019
18 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY Note

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences:
Advance from tenants (net of receivables) 115,808,675         17,188,200           

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 81,056,599        27,169,032          
Provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) 19.1 776,391,813        -                            
Retention money 5,809,251          5,018,090             
Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) --                        9,290,946             
Payable to p 2.91dnuf tnedivor 1,107,183          541,654                 
Withholding income tax payable 11,342,304          1,488,867             

19.3 1165,707,150      43,508,589           

19.1

19.2

19.3 These payables are non-interest bearing and generally on an average term of 1 to 12 months.

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of the Section 218 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

Rupees

The Company has entered into the Musharaka facility agreement of Rs. 45,353,383 with a commercial modaraba
company dated December 29, 2019. The purpose of the loan is to purchase HPE Proliant DL 380 Generation 10 server &
core switches, access switches and transceivers. The amount received against the facility is repayable in monthly
installments for a period of 3 years at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 350 basis points. The facility has been secured
against the following:

- Title of the assets in the name of Modaraba Company for the entire facilty tenor; and
- Post dated cheques for the entire facilty tenor.

In accordance with the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2011 (GIDC Act, 2011), the Company was required to
pay GIDC to applicable supplier of Gas, as specified in the First Schedule and at rates specified in the Second Schedule
to the GIDC Act, 2011.

Subsequently, on 13 August 2020, Supreme Court of Pakistan has announced a judgement, "As all industrial and
commercial entities which consume gas for their business activities pass on the burden to their customers / clients
therefore all arrears of ‘Cess’ that have become due upto 31 July 2020 and have not been recovered so far shall be
recovered by the Companies responsible under the GIDC Act, 2015 to recover from their consumers. However, as a
concession, the same be recovered in twenty four equal monthly installments starting from 01 August 2020 without the
component oflate payment surcharge". Accordingly, the Company has recognised a provision in these unconsolidated
financial statements and intends to pay the amount within next 12 months
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222002200 2019
20 DUE TO RELATED PARTIES – unsecured Note

Parent company
TPL Corp Limited 4,531,886           -                             

Subsidiary companies
TPL REIT Management Company Limited 7,899                    -                             
TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited 426,180               -                             

Associated companies
TPL Insurance Limited -                         6,097,824              
TPL Trakker Limited 5,700,233           4,287,788              
TPL Security Services (Private) Limited 11,540,100         -                             

20.1 222,206,298         10,385,612           

20.1

Rupees

Represents the amount payable to related parties on account of expenses incurred and services acquired by the
Company.

222000222000 22001199
2211 AACCCCRRUUEEDD  MMAARRKK--UUPP NNoottee

Long-term financing 71s 9900,,118855,,449999                76,175,246          
Markup on Diminishing Musharaka Arrang 71stneme 555522,,994444                            -                            
Short-term borrowing 22s 1133,,774477,,883333                13,780,751          

110044,,448866,,227766            89,955,997           

2222 SSHHOORRTT--TTEERRMM  BBOORRRROOWWIINNGGSS  --  sseeccuurreedd

222000222000 22001199
2233 AADDVVAANNCCEESS  FFRROOMM  TTEENNAANNTTSS  --  UUnnsseeccuurreedd NNoottee

AAddvvaannccee  aaggaaiinnsstt  rreenntt

RReellaatteedd  PPaarrttiieess  ((aassssoocciiaatteedd  ccoommppaanniieess))
TPL Trakker Limited 1133,,227700,,339955                -                            
TPL Insurance Limited 88,,775566,,668811                    -                            

2222,,002277,,007766                --                                                

1.32srehtO 9977,,554499,,771100                113,944,849       
111199,,557766,,778866          113,944,849       

AAddvvaanncceess  aaggaaiinnsstt  mmaaiinntteennaannccee  sseerrvviicceess  ((ccoonnttrraaccttuuaall  lliiaabbiilliittiieess))

RReellaatteedd  PPaarrttiieess  ((aann  aassssoocciiaatteedd  ccoommppaannyy))
TPL Insurance Limited 66,,225544,,337755                    -                            

Others 2222,,117711,,112244                -                            
2288,,442255,,449999                -                            

114488,,000022,,228855            113,944,849        

2233..11

RRuuppeeeess

During the year, the Company has enetered into a musharakah agreement with an islamic bank of Rs. 400 million to
create joint ownership in the Centrepoint Project against bank's share of 6.49%. The amount is repayable through
quarterly payments at the rate of 2.5% plus 3 months KIBOR, as consideration for use of bank's share by the Company.
The said periodic payments are secured against equitable interest over the Centrepoint Project.

RRuuppeeeess

Represents non-interest bearing advances received from tenants on account of premises taken on rent in Centrepoint
Project.
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224 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

24.1 Contingencies

24.1.1

24.1.2

The Company has filed a petition before the Honorable Sindh High Court challenging the vires of Section 5A of Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 introduced through Finance Act, 2017, whereby the Company is required to make payment of
additional amount of 7.5% of the accounting profit after tax. The Court passed an interim order that no coercive action
would be taken against the petitioner under the garb of the impugned Section, as has been passed in similar other
petitions pending adjudication. The matter is still at hearing stage and management is confident of a favorable outcome,
accordingly, no provision has been recorded in the financial statements.

The Company does not charge SST on its rental income on the ground that lending property on rent is not a service. The
Company had challenged the above levy before the Court. The Honorable High Court of Sindh held, vide its judgment

not covered in the definition of economic activity as provided in the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011. The said
order of High Court of Sindh has been challenged by the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) before the Honorable Supreme
Court of Pakistan (SCP) simultaneously the Sindh Legislature has amended the definition of economic activity to
neutralize effect of the said judgment of the Sindh High Court. Certain taxpayers have again challenged the levy of Sindh
sales tax on renting ofimmovable property on the basis that it does not involve any element of service and that the
judgement of SHC is still in-tact. SHC has also granted stay to the said taxpayers. The management is also of the view that
the judgement of SHC is still intact and, therefore, currently no SST is being charged by the Company while invoicing
rentals and no provision has been made in the financial statements in this respect.

22002200 2019
24.2 Commitments

24.2.1 Bank Guarantee

Outstanding amount 116,854,000         16,854,000           
Untilised amount --                         -                             

24.2.2

22002200 2019

Dimensions
-  Total contract value 22,383,393          -                            
-  Paid upto last year by the Company (1,000,000)         -                            
Balance commitment 11,383,393           -                             

Greaves Pakistan (Private) Limited
-  Total contract value 9996,373              -                        
-  Paid during the year by the Company (498,186)            -                        
Balance commitment 4498,187               -                             

24.2.3 The Company had entered into commercial property leases on its investment property with TTL and TIL and
other tenants. These non-cancellable leases have terms of five years. Future minimum rentals receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases as at year end are as follows:

The Company’s material contractual commitments in respect of Centrepoint Project at year end are as follows:

Rupees

Rupees

22002200 2019
Note

Not later than one year 402,923,769     361,821,710       
Later than one year but not later than five years 11,166,516,404  1,245,649,621     

1,569,440,173  1,607,471,331     

Rupees
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222002200 2019
Note

25 INCOME

Rental Income
Related parties (associated companies):

TPL Trakker Limited 68,446,879        48,035,046          
TPL Insurance Limited 69,821,333        51,002,892          

138,268,212     99,037,938          

Others 337,925,891     303,556,731       
Less: discounts ((9,729,529)         -                            

328,196,362     303,556,731       
466,464,574     402,594,669       

Revenue from services to tenants
Revenue from maintenance and other related services

Related parties (associated companies):
TPL Trakker Limited 12,202,920        -                        
TPL Insurance Limited 12,431,210        -                        

24,634,130        -                        
Others 70,905,646        -                        

95,539,776        -                        
Revenue from electricity and air conditioning services

Related parties (associated companies):
TPL Trakker Limited 227,630,607        -                        
TPL Insurance Limited 110,084,961        -                        

37,715,568        -                        
Others 76,415,981        -                        

 114,131,549     -                        
Revenue from IT services 

TPL Trakker Limited (an associate company) 229,779,794        -                        

Less: Sales tax on services ((27,547,474)      -                            

678,368,219      402,594,669        

Rupees

266 DIRECT OPERATING COSTS

Salaries, wages and other benefits 449,980,297        -                            
Oil, g 1.62 leseid dna sa 129,589,961     -                            
Housekeeping and cleaning 14,027,532        -                            
Insurance 7,978,628          6,949,077             
Repairs and maintenance 77,807,000          3,628,399             
Landscaping and p lantation 33,765,000          -                            
Water expenses - net 22,796,766          -                            
Duties and taxes 11,031,6281 03 628          1,031,628             

216,976,812      11,609,104           

26.1 This includes provision for GIDC Cess as dislcosed in note 19.1 to these unconsolidated financial statements.
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222002200 2019
27 ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES Note

Salaries, wag 1.72stifeneb rehto dna se 444,101,524        28,486,615          
Legal and professional 221,723,357        17,019,038          
Repairs and maintenance 229,206,454        13,011,439          
Rent 11,737,841        9,358,833             

3.72snoitanoD 3,400,000          7,500,000             
Gym running expenses 33,650,034          3,600,000             
Entertainment and recreation 11,872,822          3,754,956             
Fuel and mobile 11,689,978          3,094,270             
Advertisement 1,428,695          2,715,014             
Dep 5noitaicer 3,611,320          2,534,302             

6noitazitromA 150,690              150,690                 
Travelling 1,321,715          2,459,306             

2.72 noitarenumer ’srotiduA 2,812,206          2,000,000             
Printing and stationery 1,269,967          1,901,481             
Insurance 2,916,543          1,713,816             
IT related expenses 11,115,927          1,589,833             
Provision for expected credit losses 547,936              -                            
Subscriptions 226,950              900,098                 
Utilities 714,588              808,808                 
Staff welfare 309,980              352,277                 
Training and development 440,460                338,759                 
Courier and telecommunication 3311,478              491,672                 
Reversal for Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) ((9,290,946)         -                            
Others 12,751,420        1,042,590             

137,620,939      104,823,797        

27.1

22002200 2019
27.2 Auditors’ remuneration 

Audit fees
 Statutory
  - standalone 1,458,000          800,000                 
  - consolidation 275,000              250,000                 

1,733,000          1,050,000             

Half yearly review fee 5534,600              486,000                 
Certifications 423,500              385,000                 
Out of pocket 121,106              79,000                    

2,812,206           2,000,000              

Rupees

These include Rs.3.865 million (2019: Rs. 0.929 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits (provident fund
contribution).

Rupees

27.3 Represents donations made to the following parties: NNote

Sindh Institute of Urology and Transplantation (SIUT) Trust 22,500,000         2,500,000           
The Aga Khan University Hospital (The Patient's Behbud Society for AKUH) 5500,000            -                          
IBA-Event Hall -                      1,950,000           
World Wide Fund for Nature Pakistan --                      350,000               
Friends of Pink Ribbon Karachi Chapter 2200,000            200,000               
The Indus Hospital -                      2,500,000           
Pakistan Institute of Labor Education & Research 2200,000            -                          

27.3.1 33,400,000          7,500,000            

27.3.1 The recipients of donations do not include any donee in which a director or spouse had any interest.
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  22002200 2019
28 FINANCE COSTS

Markup on
-   long-term financing 351,657,830    220,727,502      
-   assets under Diminshing Musharaka Arrangement 55,029,255          -                           
-   short-term borrowings 661,760,110      46,078,572         

418,447,195    266,806,074      
Bank charges 624,433            441,617               

419,071,628     267,247,691       

29 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Profit on savings account 112,098,997      33,252,590         
Markup on long-term loans to subsidiaries 661,292,126      26,535,421         
Un-realised gain on investments in mutual funds 3370,021            -                          

Gain on disposal of investments in subsidary
Gain on disposal of investments in mutual funds

-       
2,791,879    

5,583,720           
Markup on loan to a company 744,384            -

-

                          
Exchange gain - net 8,032                 -                          

77,305,439      65,371,731         

Income from non-financial assets
Fair value gain on investment property 292,165,699    666,992,964      
Others 3,353,363         942,838               

295,519,062    667,935,802      
372,824,501     733,307,533       

30 TAXATION

Current 15,913,091      32,539,058         
Prior (13,990,296)     -                          
Deferred (1,379,525)       (10,379,286)       

543,270             22,159,772          

30.1 Relationship between accounting profit and tax expense

Profit before taxation 2277,523,341     752,221,610       

Applicable tax rate 229% 29%

Tax at the above rate 880,481,769      218,144,267      
Effect of non-taxable income for tax purpose (105,582,815)  (193,701,383)    
Effect of over claim deductions for tax purpose -                      (1,364,197)          
Non-deductible expense for tax purpose - net 205,222,756    -                                                    
Effect of tax credit -                      -                          
Others (179,578,440)578,440)  (918,915)              

Tax expense for the year            22,159,772          

Effective tax rate 0.202020. % 2.95%

Rupees

543,270543,270
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330.2

30.3

22002200 2019
31 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 2276,980,071    730,061,838        

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 3327,393,106    327,393,106        

Earnings per share – basic and diluted 00.85 2.23

There is no dilutive effect on basic earnings per share of the Company.

32 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND OTHER EXECUTIVES

32.1 The aggregate amounts charged in these unconsolidated financial statements for the year are as follows:

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

- Director's fee (Note 32.3) --                 -                  2200,000      380,000        --                           -                               

7,409,032   7,409,032    -                  -                  115,104,608          9,057,395                 

- Retirement benefit --                 -                  --                 -                  7773,835                471,420                     

- Medical 5510,968      510,968        -                  -                  9928,112                565,405                     

Total 7,920,000   7,920,000    2200,000      380,000        116,806,555          10,094,220               

Number of persons 11 1 22 3 77 3

32.2

32.3 Represents aggregate of meeting fees paid / payable to non-executive directors.

32.4

32.5 The total number of directors as at the reporting date were 8 (2019: 8).

33 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The proceedings for amendment of assessment for the tax year 2018 have been initiated by the Additional Commissioner
under Section 122(9) read with section 122(5A) of the Ordinance.

In response to the same, the Company has submitted relevant information along with all necessary evidences. There has
been no further correspondence from the department since then and the proceeding is yet to be finalised. Accordingly, no
provision has been recorded in the financial statements in this respect

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) has amended the assessment of the Group by passing an Order under
Section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2017 thereby creating a tax demand of Rs.7,931,385/-
however out of Rs 34 million, Rs 33 million has been received against the refund for tax year 2017 on June 30, 2020.
Management is confident about receiving the remaining amount and therefore no provision for the above demand has been
made in these consolidated financial statements.

Rupees

umber of shares

 Chief Executive Director  Other Executives 

Rupees

- Managerial remuneration,                 
utilities, housing perquisites, etc.

In addition, the Chief Executive has also been provided with free use of Company owned and maintained car and other
benefits in accordance with their entitlements as per the rules of the Company.

As per revised requirement of the Act, executive means an employee, other than chief executive and directors, whose basic
salary exceeds twelve hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.

The related parties of the Company comprise of the ultimate parent company, parent company, subsidiaries, associated
companies, major shareholders, suppliers, directors, key management personnel and staff retirement benefit fund. All the
transactions with related parties are entered into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.
The transactions with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in the unconsolidated financial statements are as
follows:
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222002200 2019

Subsidiary Companies
TPL Corp Limited
Expenses paid on behalf of the Company 4,531,886         -                           

Subsidiary Companies

HKC (Private) Limited
Mark-up on long-term loan 661,292,126      26,535,421          
Payment received by the Company 74,499,374      -                           
Expenses incurred / paid by the Company 1136,305,163    223,986,747        

Rupees

TPL REIT Management Company Limited [TPLRMC]
Expenses incurred / paid by the Company 35,601                -                            
Payment received from by the Company 443,500                 -                             

TPL Property Management (Private) Limited [TPLPM]
Expenses incurred / paid by the Company 1116,770               -                             

TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited [TPLLP]
Expenses incurred / paid by the Company 172,820              -                            
Loan given by the Company 600,000,000     -                            
Payment received by the Company 5599,000               -                             

G-18 (Private) Limited
Funds transferred (to) / by the Company (214,662,834)  214,662,834       
Expenses incurred / paid by the Company 1187,002               200,000                  

Common Directorship

Expenses incurred / paid by TIL --                        3,625,204             
Payment made by the Company 6,097,828          -                            
Amount received by the Compay 120,085,898     33,900,912          
Services acquired by the Company 889,747,148         51,002,892           

TPL Life Insurance Limited [TLIL]
Expenses paid by the Company on behalf of TLIL 4,578,101          5,088,933             
Expenses incurred/paid by TLIL on behalf the Company 2,551,329          -                            
Amount received from TLIL 44,800,000           3,259,440              

TPL Security Services (Private) Limited [TSS]
Services acquired by the Company 12,320,880        10,652,400          
Amount paid against services --                         8,805,984             

Payment made by the Company 28,498,000        20,759,440          
Expenses paid by the Company 8,014,673          -                            
Expenses incurred/paid by TTL 338,390,049        17,697,413          
Amount received by the Company on account of rent and other services 180,965,630     71,331,154          
Services acquired by the Company 1128,792,776      48,035,046           

Staff retirement benefit fund

TPL Properties Limited – Provident fund
Employer contribution 66,420,588           2,600,177              

TPL Insurance Limited

TPL Trakker Limited [TTL]
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For the year ended June 30, 2020

reasonably high credit ratings. The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancement is given below:

333.1

33.2

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

34.1 Market risk

34.1.1 Currency risk

The related parties transactions with key management personnel has been disclosed in note 32 to the unconsolidated
financial statements.

The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of the risk which are summarised below and
accordingly, no change was made in the objectives, policies or procedures and assumptions during the year ended
June 30, 2020.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist
due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. As at reporting date, the Company is not materially
exposed to currency risk and accordingly, the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the exchange rate
with all other variables held constant in not reported

The related parties status of outstanding receivables and payables, if any, as at June 30, 2020 and 30 June 2019 are
disclosed in respective notes to these unconsolidated financial statements.

34.1.2 Interest rate risk

Increase / 
decrease in 
basis points

(Decrease) / 
increase in profit 

before tax
(Rupees) 

2020 +100 (15,152,656)       
-100 15,152,656         

)907,924,31(001+9102           
-100 13,429,709          

34.1.3 Other price risk

34.2 Credit risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. As of the reporting date, the Company's exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term financing and short-term
borrowings at floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, on the Company’s profit before tax (through impact on floating rate borrowings).

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices such as equity price risk. As of the reporting date, the Company is not
exposed to other price risk.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation. As of the reporting date, the Company is not materially exposed to credit risk except for
receivable against rent from tenants, loans, advances, deposits and bank balances. The Company manages credit risk by
obtaining advance from tenants and the credit risk on liquid assets is limited because the counter parties are banks with
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UUnconsolidated-
statement of 

financial 
position

Maximum 
exposure

Unconsolidated-
statement of 

financial position

Maximum 
exposure

Receivables against rent from tenants        120,040,829         120,040,829            24,386,706             24,386,706 
Long-term loans to subsidiaries    1,076,874,088     1,076,874,088         712,505,944          712,505,944 
Long-term deposits             2,786,919              2,786,919                   286,919                    286,919 
Due from a related party            1,039,600              1,039,600         215,194,817          215,194,817 
Bank balances        224,888,511         224,888,511         209,010,763          209,010,763 

   1,425,629,947      1,425,629,947       1,161,385,149       1,161,385,149 

22002200 2019
Rating Agency

PACRA 55,522,383          2,274,318             
JCR-VIS 33,754,891           30,311,473           
PACRA 3315,623              33,984,242          
JCR-VIS 114,740,463       17,512,250          
JCR-VIS 2201,754,688    124,928,480       

226,088,048      209,010,763        

A1
A2
A3

A-1+

Rupees Rupees

Bank Balances by short-term rating 
category Rupees 

A1+

As of reporting date, the credit quality of Company’s bank balances with reference to external credit rating is as follows:

2020 2019

34.3 Liquidity risk

On Less than 1 to 5 More than 
demand 3 months years 5 years

June 30, 2020

Long-term financing --            88,000,000      88,000,000            1,407,500,000  1,200,000,000         2,783,500,000  
Short term borrowings --            -                      400,000,000         -                        -                              400,000,000     
Trade and other payables --            -                      195,230,383         -                        -                              195,230,383     
Due to related parties --            -                      22,206,298            -                        -                              22,206,298        
Accrued mark-up --            104,486,276   -                           -                        -                              104,486,276     

-            192,486,276   705,436,681         1,407,500,000  1,200,000,000         3,505,422,957  

On Less than 1 to 5 More than 
demand 3 months years 5 years

June 30, 2019

Long-term financing -              55,000,000        55,000,000               1,056,000,000 000,000,099                     2,156,000,000    
Short term borrowings -              -                          400,000,000 -                                         -                                    400,000,000        
Trade and other payables -              -                          49,556,010 -                                            -                                    49,556,010           
Due to related parties -              -                          10,385,612 -                                            -                                    10,385,612           
Accrued mark-up -              89,955,997 -                                        -                             -                                    89,955,997           

-              144,955,997      514,941,622            1,056,000,000 000,000,099                     2,705,897,619    

Rupees

3 to 12 months Total

Liquidity risk represents the risk that a Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations with the financial liabilities.
The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance working capital management. As of the reporting date, the Company is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect oflong-term financing, short-term borrowings, trade and other payables and due to related
parties.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at June 30, 2020 and June, 30 2019
based on contractual undiscounted payment dates and present market interest rates:

3 to 12 months Total

Rupees
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334.4 Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value hierarchy

Financial instruments carried at fair value are categorized as follows:

Level 1: Quoted market price.
Level 2: Valuation techniques (market observable)
Level 3: Valuation techniques (non-market observables)

The Company held the following financial instrumen Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
measured at fair value:

June 30, 2020
Investment property (note 7.1)   7,617,000,000                        -       7,617,000,000                         -   
Short-term investments (note 14)                396,823             396,823                               -                           -   

June 30, 2019
Investment property (note 7.1)     6,846,271,191                            -          6,846,271,191                            -   
Short-term investments (note 14)                   124,200                124,200                                   -                              -   

34.5 Capital risk management 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability can be settled, between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arm's length transaction. The carrying amounts of all the financial instruments reflected in these unconsolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair value.

----------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------- 

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to
support and sustain future development ofits business operations and maximize shareholders’ value. The Company closely
monitors the return on capital along with the level of distributions to ordinary shareholders.

22002200 2019
Note

71sgnicnanif mret-gnoL 2,773,555,232  2,108,762,771     
91selbayap rehto dna edarT 165,707,150      43,508,589           
02seitrap detaler ot euD 22,206,298         10,385,612           
12pu-kram deurccA 104,486,276      89,955,997           
22sgniworrob mret-trohS 400,000,000      400,000,000        
32stnanet morf secnavdA 148,002,285      113,944,849        

Total debts 33,613,957,241  2,766,557,818     

Less: Cash and bank balances 2225,528,957     209,611,031       

Net debt 3,388,428,284 2,556,946,787    

Total equity 6,438,268,372 6,587,880,219    

Total capital 9,826,696,656  9,144,827,006     

Gearing ratio 34% 28%

Rupees

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in the light of changes in economic conditions.
The Company monitors capital using a debt equity ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. Equity comprises of
share capital, capital reserve and revenue reserve. The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 are as
follows:
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335 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION OF ISSUE

36 GENERAL

36.1

36.2

36.3

36.4 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

Figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation. However, there has been no
material reclassification to report.

Number of employees as at June 30, 2020 was 24 (June 30, 2019: 21) and average number of employees during the
year was 22 (June 30, 2019: 17).

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on 9th September, 2020 by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

These unconsolidated financial statements reflect the effect of amalgamation, as disclosed in note 1.5. Accordingly, the 
corresponding figures are not comparable.

Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the members of TPL Properties Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of TPL Properties Limited  and its 
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position of the Group as at 30 June 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group 
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ 
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

Following are the Key audit matter: 

KKey audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

1. Valuation of investment property held for sale 

 The Group’s investment property (“IP”) held for sale constitutes 

the Centerpoint Project which is located in Karachi, principally 

comprising rented office premises. As disclosed in note 7.1(to be 

read with note 7.5) to the accompanying unconsolidated financial 

statements the IP amounts to Rs. 7,596 million and constitutes 

75% of the total assets of the Group. The IP is recorded as non-

current asset held for sale under fair value model in accordance 

with applicable financial reporting framework, and accordingly, a 

fair value gain of Rs. 292 million has been recorded by the Group 

during the year on account of its fair valuation which was 

performed by an independent external property valuer.  

 

We identified valuation of the IP held for sale as a key audit matter 

because of the significance of IP held for sale to the total assets of 

the Group and because the determination of the fair values 

involves significant judgement and estimation, particularly in 

selecting the appropriate valuation methodology, market 

projections and market rents. 

 

 Our audit procedures amongst others comprised of: 
 

 We assessed the competence of the management 

independent external valuer and reviewed the valuation 

report prepared by them to understand the basis and 

methodology of the valuation. 
 

 Involved EY’s external valuer to assess the appropriateness 

of assumptions and estimates used by management’s 

independent valuer in terms of estimated selling price, 

occupancy, condition, market projections and currency 

valuation. 
 

 Reviewed underlying evidences including but not limited to 

Board of Directors approval, sale agreement etc. related to 

decision for sale of Centerpoint project to an independent 

third party. 
 

 We have evaluated the conditions as per the International 

Financial Reporting Standard  (IFRS) 5 – “Non-Current 

Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” for 

classifying the  investment property as non-current assets 

held for sale; and  

 Assessed the adequacy of the presentation and disclosures 

in the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements 

in respect of the investment property held for sale in 

accordance with approved financial and reporting 

standards. 
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consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and 
Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

l Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

l Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

l Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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l Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ 
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

l Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

l Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Shariq Ali Zaidi. 

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi
Date: October 05, 2020
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Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position
As at June 30, 2020

222002200 2019
Note

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Operating 5stessa dexif 3,885,426                376,056,976            
Intang 6tessa elbi 750,389                    1,000,519                  
Investment property 7 228,308,153              6,874,579,344         
Development property 8 11,437,387,784        1,265,142,970         
Advance against future issuance of shares 6600,000,000           -                                
Long 9stisoped mret- 2,786,919                2,786,919                  

01ten - tessa xat derrefeD -                             96,836,664               
2,073,118,671        8,616,403,392         

CURRENT ASSETS
Tools 963,747                    1,070,706                  

11stnanet morf selbavieceR 120,040,829           96,863,705               
Loans, advances, prepay ments and other receivables 446,572,917              308,068,498            

31seitrap detaler morf euD 203,845                    3,507,415                  
Taxation - net 118,512,286           156,594,058            

41tnemtsevni mret-trohS 49,857,359              45,898,517               
Interest accrued 1,422,963                1,163,133                  

51secnalab knab dna hsaC 231,668,157           217,035,018            
569,242,103           830,201,050            

Non-current asset held for sale 7.5 77,596,392,498        -                                

TOTAL ASSETS 10,238,753,272     9,446,604,442         

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised capital
400,000,000 (2019: 400,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 44,000,000,000        4,000,000,000

         

61latipac pu-diap dna debircsbus ,deussI 3,273,931,060        3,273,931,060         

Capital reserve 21,746,165              21,746,165               
Revenue reserve 3,039,225,919        2,925,593,603         

6,334,903,144        6,221,270,828         

Non-controlling interest 1175,481,861           175,907,498            
6,510,385,005        6,397,178,326         

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Long-term financing 71s 22,657,437,440        2,131,011,993         
Deferred tax liability 01ten - 15,808,675              -                                

2,673,246,115        2,131,011,993         

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other pay 81selba 173,818,830           77,934,374               
Accrued expenses 11,239,140              15,357,256               

91seitrap detaler ot euD 23,488,219              10,385,612               
02pu-kram deurccA 107,455,886           97,207,446               

Short-term borrowing 12s 4400,000,000           400,000,000            
Current portion of long-term financing 71s 1191,117,792           165,000,000            

22stnanet morf secnavdA 148,002,285           152,529,435            
1,055,122,152        918,414,123            

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,238,753,272     9,446,604,442         

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Rupees 

12

Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2020

20202020 2019
Note

Income 24 6678,368,219           597,206,250              

52stsoc gnitarepo tceriD (216,976,812)         (174,332,788)            

Gross profit 461,391,407           422,873,462              

62sesnepxe lareneg dna evitartsinimdA (141,360,354)         (139,391,319)            

72stsoc ecnaniF (419,071,628)         (290,216,526)            

82emocni rehtO 317,487,880           709,040,311              

Profit before taxation 218,447,305           702,305,928              

92noitaxaT (105,240,626)         (26,052,004)               

Profit for the year 113,206,679           676,253,924              

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax --                              -                                  

Total comprehensive income for the year 113,206,679           676,253,924              

Attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Company 1113,632,316           676,473,573              
Non-controlling interest ((425,637)                  (219,651)                      

113,206,679           676,253,922              

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 30 00.35                           2.07                                

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Rupees 

Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director
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Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2020

CCapital reserve Revenue reserve

Issued, 
subscribed and 
paid up capital

Share premium 
account

Accumulated 
profits

Total
Non-controlling 

interest
Total equity

Balance at June 30, 2018 2,735,113,670     560,563,555        2,249,120,030     5,544,797,255     87,536,549           5,632,333,804     

-raey eht rof tiforP                             -                            676,473,573        676,473,573 -                                    676,473,573        
Other comprehensive income 

-xat fo ten ,raey eht rof                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Total comprehensive income for the year -                            -                            676,473,573        676,473,573 -                                    676,473,573        

Loss attributable to non-controlling
-raey eht rof tseretni                             -                            -                            -                            (219,651)                (219,651)                

-tseretni gnillortnoc-non ot dlos serahS                             -                            -                            -                            88,590,600           88,590,600           

093,718,835deussi serahs sunoB         (538,817,390) -                                   -                            -                            -                            

Balance at June 30, 2019 3,273,931,060   21,746,165         2,925,593,603   6,221,270,828   175,907,498       6,397,178,326   

Profit for the year --                          -                          113,632,316       113,632,316       -                          113,632,316       
Other comprehensive income

for the year, net of tax --                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total comprehensive income for the year --                          -                          113,632,316       113,632,316       -                          113,632,316       

Loss attributable to non-controlling
interest for the year --                          -                          -                          -                          (425,637)              (425,637)              

Balance at June 30, 2020 3,273,931,060   21,746,165         3,039,225,919   6,334,903,144   175,481,861       6,510,385,005   

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(Rupees)

Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director
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22020

Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note

Profit before taxation 218,447,305         702,305,926
Adjustments for non-cash items

1.5noitaicerpeD 3,611,320               42,748,219               
6noitazitrommA 250,130                  250,130                      
82sdnuf lautum ni tnemtsevni fo lasopsid no niaG (2,791,879)             (5,583,720)                
72stsoc ecnaniF 419,071,628         290,216,526            
82sdnuf lautum ni stnemtsevni no niag desilaer-nU (383,601)                 -                                 
82stnemtsevni no pukraM (744,384)                 -                                 
82ten - ssol egnahcxE 64,898                     -                                 
82tnuocca sgnivas no pu-kraM (12,995,439)           (33,389,000)              
82ytreporp tnemtsevni no niag eulav riaF (292,165,699)        (666,992,964)           

113,916,974         (372,750,809)           
Working capital changes

Decrease / (increase) in current assets

Receivables against rent, maintenance and other services ((23,177,124)           56,842,104               

Tools 106,959                  (216,777)                    

Loans, advances, prepayments and other recievables 2261,495,581         (258,287,087)           

Short-term investment (12,538,978)           54,101,483               

Due from related parties 3,303,570               (2,220,329)                

229,190,008         (149,780,606)           
(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities

Trade and other payables 95,811,526            (31,635,851)              

Accrued expenses 4,353,676               (792,654)                    

Advances from tenants (4,527,150)             40,598,457               

95,638,052            8,169,952                  

Cash flows generated from operations 657,192,339         187,944,463            

Finance cost paid (408,823,188)        (256,562,206)           

Markup on savings account received 112,735,609            32,868,858               

Income tax paid - net of refund 37,022,725            (83,711,250)              

Net cash flows generated from / (used in) operating activities 298,127,485         (119,460,135)           

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

5stessa dexif gnitarepo fo esahcruP (1,559,029)             (31,701,919)              
Additions to development properties ((172,244,814)        (176,878,109)           

7ytreporp tnemtsevni ot snoitiddA (87,836,349)           (17,951,351)              
Proceeds from disposal of investment in mutual funds      
Proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidary      

12,500,000            
94,174,320

               

Long-term investments (600,000,000)        -

-

-

Net cash flows used in investing activities (849,140,192)        (132,357,059)           

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES*
Long-term financings - net 5552,543,239         (91,889,058)              

Due to related parties 13,102,607            1,954,676                  

Net cash flow generated from / (used in) from financing activities 565,645,846         (89,934,382)              

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 14,633,139            (341,751,576)           

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2217,035,018         558,786,594            

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 2231,668,157         217,035,018

*No non-cash items are included in these activities

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Rupees

Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director
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11. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP

1.1

1.2 Holding Company

TPL Properties Limited [the Holding Company]

Geographical location and address of the business premises:

Address Purpose
Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, near KPT Interchange Flyover, Karachi. Head office and rented premises

1.3 Subsidiary Companies

1.3.1 HKC (Private) Limited [HKC]

Geographical location and address of the business premises:

Address Purpose
Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, near KPT Interchange Flyover, Karachi. Registered office

Development property site

1.3.2 G-18 (Private) Limited [G-18]

Geographical location and address of the business premises:

Address Purpose
Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, near KPT Interchange Flyover, Karachi. Registered office

1.3.3 TPL REIT Management Company Limited [ TPL REIT]

G-18 (Private) Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on April 12, 2018 under
the Companies Act, 2017 for the purpose of property development. However, as of the reporting date, G-18 has not
commenced its operations.

TPL REIT Management Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company on
October 12, 2018 under the Companies Act, 2017. The principal activity of the Company is to carry on all or any business
permitted to be carried out by a 'REIT management company' including but not limited to providing 'REIT Management
Services' in accordance with the Non-Banking Finance Comapnies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003.
However, as of the reporting date, TPL REIT has not commenced its operations.

HKC was incorporated in Pakistan on September 13, 2005 as a public limited company under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The Company is principally engaged in the acquisition and development
of real states and renovation of buildings and letting out.

Plot No 22/7, Street CL-9, Civil Lines Quarter, Karachi

The Group comprises of TPL Properties Limited [TPLP], its subsidiary companies i.e. HKC (Private) Limited [HKC], G-18
(Private) Limited [G-18], TPL REIT Management Company Limited [REIT], TPL Logistics Park (Private) Limited [TPLLP] &
TPL Property Management (Private) Limited [TPLPM] that have been consolidated in these consolidated financial
statements.

TPL Properties Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on February
14, 2007 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). Subsequently in 2016, the
Holding Company had changed its status from private limited company to public company and was listed on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity of the Holding Company is to invest, purchase, develop and build real
estate and to sell, rent out or otherwise dispose offin any manner the real estate including commercial and residential
buildings, houses, shops, plots or other premises. TPL Corp Limited and TPL Holdings (Private) Limited are the Parent
Company and Ultimate Holding Company respectively, as of the reporting date.
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Geographical location and address of the business premises:

AAdddress Purpose
Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, near KPT Interchange Flyover, Karachi. Registered office

1.3.4 TPL Property Management (Private) Limited [TPL PM]

Geographical location and address of the business premises:

Address Purpose
Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, near KPT Interchange Flyover, Karachi. Registered office

1.3.5 TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited [TPL LP]

Geographical location and address of the business premises

Address Purpose
Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, near KPT Interchange Flyover, Karachi. Registered office

1.4

Name Relationship
Common 

Directorship
Percentage of 
Shareholding

TPL Holdings (Private) Limited [THL] Ultimate Parent Company Yes 8.61%

TPL Corp moC tneraP]LCT[ detimiL pany Yes 21.90%

raidisbuSdetimiL )etavirP( CKH y Company Yes 80.00%

raidisbuSdetimiL )etavirP( 81-G y Company Yes 99.99%

TPL REIT Management Company Limited Subsidiary Company Yes 99.99%

TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited [TPL LP] Subsidiary Company Yes 99.99%

TPL Property Management (Private) Limited [TP PM] Subsidiary Company Yes 99.99%

moC detaicossA]LTT[ detimiL rekkarT LPT pany Yes -

moC detaicossA]LIT[ detimiL ecnarusnI LPT pany Yes 2.92%

TPL Security Services (Private) Limited [TPS] Associated Company Yes 0.018%

moC detaicossA]ILT[ detimiL ecnarusnI efiL LPT pany Yes -

%04.5A/NnamriahCfusuY leemaJ .rM

eciffO evitucexE feihCleemaJ ilA dammahuM .rM r N/A 7.01%

Mr. Ali Asg O feihCreh perating Officer N/A -

-A/NreciffO laicnaniF feihCinazaK nidduraddaB mihaR .rM

TPL Properties Limited - Employees' Provident 
Fund

Employees' Provident Fund N/A -

Centrepoint Management Services (Private) 
Limited - Employees' Provident Fund

Employees' Provident Fund N/A -

The Group has entered into transactions or had agreements and / or arrangements in place during the reporting period
with the following related parties:

TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on December 11, 2019 as a private
company, limited by shares under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act). The principal business of the entity is to carry on
the business of the Holding Company and to coordinate and regulate the administration, finances, activities and
business of the subsidiaries, shareholding interests in other Companies and to undertake and carry out all such services
in connection therewith. However, as of the reporting date, TPL LP has not commenced its operations.

TPL Property Management (Private) Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on April 10, 2020 as a private
company, limited by shares under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act). The principal business of the entity is to carry on
the business of providing all types of facilities management. maintenance and execution of contracts of all kinds and of
structure including but not limited to rsidential, commercial, mixed use, hotel or any other real estate developments.
However, as of the reporting date, TPL PM has not commenced its operations.
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222 IIMMPPAACCTT OOFF CCOOVVIIDD-1199 OONN TTHHEE FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL SSTTAATTEEMEENNTTSS 

3 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of preparation

4.2 Basis of consolidation

4.2.1 Subsidiaries

-  

-  
-  

-  the contractual arrangements with the other vote holders of the investee; 
-  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
-  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

These consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, HKC, G-18, TPL Property Management, TPL Logistic Park and TPL REIT as at June 30, 2020, here-in-after
referred to as ‘the Group’.

Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of 
the investee);
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date when such control ceases. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed off during the year are included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) has disrupted commercial and economic activities all around the
world and has impacted almost every organization and industry. The operations and results of the Company mainly
impacted in the later part of financial year due to lockdown situation around the region. The outbreak still continues to
progress and evolve, therefore, it is challenging now to predict the full extent and duration of  its business and economic
impact. However, up to the date of authorisation of these financial statements,the operations and results of the company
have not been materially impacted by COVID -19 pandemic

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting
Standard Board (IASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and  provisions of and directives issued under the 
Act and Islamic Financial and Accounting Standards (IFAS). Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Act
differ from the IFRS standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Act have been followed.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise
stated.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control.
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When the ownership of a subsidiary is less than 100 percent, and therefore, a non-controlling interest (NCI) exists,
accordingly, the components of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance

44.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations adopted during the year

New and Amended Standards

IFRS-9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments)
IFRS-14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS-16 Leases
IFRS-16 COVID 19 Related Rent Concessions (Amendments)
IAS-19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments)
IAS-28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments)
IFRIC-23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments

IFRS-3 Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint operation 
IFRS-11 Joint Arrangements - Previously held Interests in a joint operation
IAS-12 
IAS-23 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation 

Income Taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments classified as equity 

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purposes
ofimpairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, on the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group’s cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination. Goodwill is tested annually
or whenever there is an indication ofimpairment exists. Impairment loss in respect of goodwill is recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and is not reversed in future periods.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line by line basis and
the carrying value ofinvestments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the subsidiaries’
shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated in full.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those
of the previous financial year except as described below:

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and amendments of IFRSs which became effective for the
current year:

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2015-2017 cycle)

The adoption of the above standards, amendments, interpretations and improvements to the accounting standards did
not have any material effect on the Group's financial statements except for IFRS 16. The impact of adoption of IFRS 16
and its amendments are described below:

HKC, G-18, TPL PM, TPL LP and TPL REIT have the same reporting period as that of the Holding Company. The
accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to confirm with accounting policies of the Group,
wherever needed.
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IIFRS 16 – Leases

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating
Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure ofleases and requires
lessees to account for most leases under a single on-balance sheet model. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in IAS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16 does not have any impact for leases where the Group is lessor. Whereas,
for lessees all leases will be classified as finance leases only.

4.4 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

a) Fair value of investment property

b) Recognition of tax and deferred tax

4.5 Operating fixed assets

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are
based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
and in any future periods affected

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, estimates
and assumptions which are significant to these consolidated financial statements:

Other areas where judgments, estimates and assumptions involved are disclosed in respective notes to these
consolidated financial statements.

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income applying the straight-line
method. Depreciation on additions during the year is charged from the month of addition, whereas, depreciation on
disposals is charged upto the month in which the disposal takes place.

Rates of depreciation which are disclosed in note 5 to these consolidated financial statements are designed to write-off
the cost over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

The provision for taxation is accounted for by the Group after taking into account the relevant laws and decisions
taken by appellate authorities. Instances, where the Group's view differs from the view taken by the tax authorities
at the assessment stage and where the Group considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance
with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities / assets.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date ofinitial application of 01
July 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect ofinitially applying
standard recognized at the date ofinitial application. The Group elected to use the transition practical expedient allowing
the standard to be applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 as of 01 July 2019.
The Group also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a
lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option (‘short-term leases’), and lease contracts for which
the underlying asset is oflow value (‘low-value assets’). As at 01 July 2019, the Group do not have significant impact of
adoption of IFRS 16, as the Group is acting as lessor in all its lease arrangements.

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. An independent valuation specialist is
engaged by the Group to assess fair value of investment property based on values with reference to market-based 
evidence, using comparable prices adjusted for specific market factors such as nature, location and condition of
the property.
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Assets residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each
reporting date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss on derecognition of an asset represented by the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Major renewals and improvements for assets are capitalized, if recognition criteria is met and the assets so replaced, if
any, are retired. Maintenance and normal repairs are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

44.6 Intangible asset

4.7 Investment property

Investment property is measured initially at cost including transaction costs. Transaction costs include transfer taxes,
professional fees for legal services and initial leasing commissions to bring the property to the condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating. The carrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment
property at the time that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria is met.

Transfers are made to or from the investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment
property to owner-occupied, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If
owner occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under property, plant and equipment upto the date of change in use.

Investment property under construction is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
the cost ofland acquired for the development of project and other purchase cost, related government taxes, construction
cost, borrowing cost and other overheads necessary to bring the premises for capital appreciation or rental earnings. 

Investment property is derecognised when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the derecogntition ofinvestment property are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the year of retirement or
disposal. Gain or loss on the disposal ofinvestment property are determined as the difference between net disposal
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value which reflects market condition at reporting
date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise, including the corresponding tax effect, if any. Fair values 
are determined based on an annual valuation performed by an accredited independent valuer.

Investment property comprises completed property and property under construction that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or both.

Intangible assets other than goodwill, customers related intangible assets and marketing related intangible assets are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill, customers related
intangible assets and marketing related intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, as
their useful life is indefinite and are tested for impairment annually. For other intangibles, amortisation is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income applying the straight line method, whereby, the
cost ofintangible asset is written off over its useful economic life. The amortisation rate of the intangible assets are stated
in note 6 to these financial statements. Full month's amortisation is charged in the month of addition when the asset is
available for use, whereas, amortisation on disposals is charged upto the month in which the disposal takes place.

Intangible assets under development are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. It consists of
expenditure incurred in respect ofintangible assets under development in the course of their acquisition, erection,
development and installation. The assets are transferred to relevant category ofintangible assets when they are available
for use.
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44.8 Non-current assets held for sale

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements, if any, are capitalised, if recognition criteria is met.

The Group classifies non-current assets (principally investment property) as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets classified as held
for sale (except for investment property measured at fair value) are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding
finance costs and income tax expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or
disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should
indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn.
Management must be committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale is expected to be completed within one year
from the date of the classification

4.9 Development property

a) 
b) 
c) 

d) 

4.10 Leases - Group as lessor

4.11 Impairment of non-financial assets and investments in subsidiaries 

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. The fair value
less costs to sell calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs to sell of the asset

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, based on market prices less costs to
completion and the estimated costs of sale.

cost of leasehold land;

planning and design costs, cost of site preparation, professional fee for legal services, property transfer taxes,
development charges, construction overheads and other related costs necessary to bring the premises in
saleable condition;and

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised
as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

contractors for developing inner perimeter, including but not limited to road development, amenities and utilities
and other infrastructure.

amounts paid to contractors for construction; 

Property acquired, constructed or in the course of construction for sale in the ordinary course of business, rather than to
be held for rental or capital appreciation, is classified as development properties. The Group will sell the completed
housing units and not providing any construction services as a contractor engaged by the buyer. In addition, the buyer of
housing units does not have an ability to specify the major structural elements of the design or major structural changes
before construction and / or construction is in progress. All project costs incurred or to be incurred till the completion of
project are capitalised as development properties and is stated in lower of cost and net realisable value. Accordingly, the
cost of development properties under construction includes:
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In determining fair value less costs to sell, the recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other fair value indicators.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually at year end and when the circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each cash generating unit
(CGU) or group of CGUs to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of CGU is less than its carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

Impairment losses relating to goodwill are not reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at year end either individually or at the
CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

44..1122 TToooollss

44..1133 CCaasshh  aanndd  ccaasshh  eeqquuiivvaalleennttss

44..1144 PPrroovviissiioonnss

Provisions are recognised when:

a) the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events;
b) it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
c) a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

44..1155 RReevveennuuee  rreeccooggnniittiioonn

aa))  RReevveennuuee  ffrroomm  ooppeerraattiinngg  lleeaassee  aarrrraannggeemmeennttss

ii))  RReennttaall  iinnccoommee

Tools are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, except items in transit, which are stated at
cost. Tools are charged to cost of goods sold on an estimated consumption pattern.

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment property is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease term and is included in revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
due to its operating nature, except for contingent rental income which is recognised when it arises. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same
basis as the lease income.

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost and are defined as cash in hand, cash at banks and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand,cheques
in hand and bank balances.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale.
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iii) Rent receivables

iii) Advance from tenants

b) Revenue from contracts with tenants

i) Revenue from services to tenants

Lease incentives that are paid or payable to the lessee are deducted from lease payments. Accordingly, tenant lease
incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The lease
term is the non-cancellable period of the lease together with any further term for whichthe tenant has the option to
continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease, the Group is reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that
option

Amounts received from tenants to terminate leases or to compensate for dilapidations are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the right to receive them arises.

Advance from tenants against rent is charged to consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income based on contractual arrangements with the tenants.

Rent receivables are recognised at their original invoiced value except where the time value of money is material, in
which case rent receivables are recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Refer to
accounting policies on financial assets as dislcosed in note 4.21 to these consolidated financial statements.

The Group is providing buidling management services to tenants such services include maintenance services, electricity
and conditioning service and other IT services. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised over the period
when the services to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange of services.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised over the time when the servicves are rendered to the customers,
generally over the contract. These services are specified in a separate service arrangement with the tenants and invoiced
separately.

ii)  Receivable against services

iii) Contractual liabilites

c) Other revenue

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest rate method and other revenues are recorded on
accrual basis.

In respect of the revenue component, these services represent a series of daily services that are individually satisfied over
time because the tenants simultaneously receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group. The Group applies
the time elapsed method to measure progress. The consideration charged to tenants for these services is based on an
agreed rates specified in the services arrangements. The variable consideration only relates to the non-lease component
and is allocated to each distinct period of service (i.e., each day) as it meets the variable consideration allocation
exception criteria.

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the passage of time
is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets as disclosed in
note 4.21 to these consolidated financial statements.
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44.16 Taxation

Current

Deferred

4.17 Foreign currency translations

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Group’s functional and
presentation currency. Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the exchange rates ruling on the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates of
exchange ruling at the reporting date. Any resulting gain or loss arising from changes in exchange rates is taken to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions.

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences arising at the reporting date
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and they relate to the income tax levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, while deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused
tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Provision for current taxation is computed on taxable income at the current rates of taxation, after taking into account tax
credits and rebates available, if any, in accordance with the provision of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. It also includes
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. However, for income covered under final tax regime, taxation is
based on applicable tax rates under such regime.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the periods when the asset is
recognised or the liability is settled based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

4.18 Staff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan

4.19 Financial instruments

4.19.1 Financial assets 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

The Group operates a recognised provident fund (defined contribution scheme) for its permanent employees who have
completed the minimum qualifying period of service. Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Group and the
employees at the rate of 8.33 percent of the basic salary.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
profit or loss and other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of financial
assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
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bb) Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 
- Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments) 
-

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

i) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

-

-

ii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (debt instruments) 

The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

-  

- 

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified
or impaired.

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling; and 

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade debts are
measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. 

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments) 

iii) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment
losses or reversals are recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value
change recognised in OCI is recycled to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss

The Group does not have any debt instruments at fair value through OCI investments during the current and last
year and as of reporting date.

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
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iiv) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

c) Derecognition

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 
-

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,  but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent ofits continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.

Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. 

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the right of
payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the
cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair
value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

d) Impairment

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms. 
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ee) Financial liabilities 

i) Initial recognition and measurement

ii) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

iii) Loans and borrowings 

f) Derecognition 

g) Offsetting of financial instruments 

4.20 Borrowing costs

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

For trade rent and other receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.  

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Group’s financial liabilities include long term financing, due to related parties, short term borrowings and
trade and other payables.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Borrowing and other related costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.
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44.21 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

4.22 Earnings per share

4.23 Share capital

4.24

Effective date 
(annual periods

Standard or Interpretation beginning on or after)

IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IFRS 9/IAS 39/

IFRS 7 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments) January 01, 2020
IFRS 10 / Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor 

IAS 28 Not yet finalized

IAS 1/ IAS 8 Definition of Material (Amendments) January 01, 2020
IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IAS 37 Onerous Contracts – Costs of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments) January 01, 2022

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2018-20 20 cycle)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Fees in the ’10 percent’ test for 
January 01, 2022

IAS 41 Ag raunaJstnemerusaem eulav riaf ni noitaxaT – erutlucir y 01, 2022

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in these consolidated financial statements in the period, in which
these are approved. However, if these are approved after the reporting period but before these consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, they are disclosed in the notes to these consolidated financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective 

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standards or
interpretations:

 and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment)

derecognition of financial liabilities

The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framework) in
March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020 for preparers of financial
statements who develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework
is not a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The
purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent
accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the
standards.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of
applicability in Pakistan. The management of the Group expects that below new standards will not have any material
impact on the Group's financial statements in the period of initial application.
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IIASB Effective date 
(annual periods

Standard beginning on or after)

IFRS 17 – Insurance Contracts January 01, 2023

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of
applicability in Pakistan.

The Group expects that above new standards will not have any material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application.

5 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

WRITTEN 
DOWN VALUE

%
Owned
Power generation 165,213,461    -                      -                      40,032,653      -                      -                      -                      3.33 & 5

* (165,213,461)  * (40,032,653)     

Furniture and fixtures 24,566,862      -                      5,838,600         10,650,520      1,160,320         5,838,598         2                          20
* (18,728,262)     * (5,972,242)       

Vehicles 6,270,932         -                      6,270,932         5,167,505         569,789            5,737,294         533,638            20

Electrical equipment 318,386,004    160,529            1,334,529         99,790,226      533,888            553,455            781,074            20
* (317,212,004)  * (99,770,659)     

IT equipment 38,788,800      -                      -                      38,113,705      -                      -                      -                      20
* (38,788,800)     * (38,113,705)     

Computer and
accessories 

8,791,333         1,326,500         9,957,364         6,364,819         1,202,104         7,473,868         2,483,496         33.33
* (160,469)           * (93,055)             

Mobile phones 303,146            72,000               535,646            210,711            145,219            448,430            87,216               50
* 160,500            * 92,500               

Gym equipment 17,175,024      -                      -                      3,108,447         -                      -                      -                      33.33
* (17,175,024) * (3,108,447)

2020 579,495,562    1,559,029         23,937,071      203,438,586    3,611,320         20,051,645      3,885,426         
(557,117,520)  (186,998,261)  

* Represents transfers from operating fixed assets to investment property (note 7). 

WRITTEN 
DOWN VALUE

%

Owned
Power generation 164,123,461 000,090,1            165,213,461   32,282,270 383,057,7               40,032,653      125,180,808   3.33 & 5

Furniture and fixtures 24,566,594 862                            24,566,862      4,870,707 318,977,5                  10,650,520      13,916,342      20

Vehicles  -                                 6,270,932         4,632,875 036,435                      5,167,505         1,103,427         20

Electrical equipment 292,876,887 711,905,52         318,386,004   79,236,712 415,355,02            99,790,226      218,595,778   3.33 - 10

IT equipment -                              38,788,800      33,472,922 387,046,4               38,113,705      675,095             20

Computer and
accessories 

6,906,811 225,488,1                  8,791,333         4,612,702 711,257,1                  6,364,819         2,426,514         33.33

Mobile phones 646,122                             303,146             81,187 425,921                             210,711             92,435                50

Gym equipment 14,178,658 663,699,2               17,175,024      1,500,992 554,706,1                  3,108,447         14,066,577      33.33
2019 547,793,643 919,107,13         579,495,562   160,690,367 912,847,24      376,056,976   

22002200 2019
5.1 The depreciation charge for the year: Note

Direct operating costs 25 -                      39,152,646
Administrative and general expenses 26 33,611,320 3,595,573

                                     33,611,320 42,748,219

As at June 30, 
2020

(Rupees) 

COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

As at July 01, 
2018

Additions / 
(disposal)

As at June 30, 
2019

As at July 01, 
2018

Charge for the 
year / 

(disposal)
As at June 30, 

2019
As at June 30, 

2019

COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

As at July 01, 
2019

Additions / 
*Transfers

As at June 30, 
2020

As at July 01, 
2019

Charge for the 
year / 

*Transfers
As at June 30, 

2020
Depre-ciation 

Rate

Depre-ciation 
Rate

 (Rupees)

 Rupees 

6,270,932

38,788,800

81,500

203,438,586

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020
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222002200 2019

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTY Note

2.7 & 1.7ytreporp tnemtsevnI -                         6,846,271,191     

6.7noitcurtsnoc rednu ytreporp tnemtsevnI 28,308,153          28,308,153            

28,308,153          6,874,579,344     

7.1 The movement in investment property during the year is as follows:

As at July 01 66,846,271,191   6,165,361,363     

Additions 87,836,349          13,916,864            

5VDW ta tessa dexif gnitarepo morf refsnarT 370,119,259       -                             

7,304,226,799   6,179,278,227     

3.7tnemtsujda eulav riaf morf niaG 292,165,699       666,992,964         

7,596,392,498   6,846,271,191     

Less: Non-current assets held for sale (refer note 7.5) ((7,596,392,498)  -                             

As at June 30 -                         6,846,271,191     

7.2

7.3

7.4 Forced sale value of the investment property as at June 30, 2020 is Rs. 6,855,300,000/- (2019: Rs. 6,514,222,500/-).

7.5 Subsequent to year end, the Holding Company in its Board of Directors meeting held on August 19, 2020, after giving due
consideration, has approved the sale of the Holding Company’s flagship project “Centrepoint” located off Shaheed-e-Millat
Expressway Near KPT Interchange, Karachi to Bank Al-Habib Limited ( an independent third party) . The
transaction is subject to execution of appropriate legal agreements, completion of necessary formalities and obtaining of all
necessary approvals and consents. The decision was taken keeping in mind the best interest of the shareholders. The
transaction is expected to close by March 2021. The Holding Company plans to use sale proceed to invest in development
of high end office tower, hotel/service apartments and low income housing projects. Accordingly, the same has been
transferred to non-current assets held for sale on the face of the consolidated statement of financial position.

Rupees 

Investment property comprises ofleasehold land having area of 2,914 square yards and building thereon, situated at 66/3-
2, Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, near KPT Interchange Flyover, Karachi, hereinafter refered to as Centrepoint Project. 

A valuation of Centrepoint Project was carried out by an independent professional valuer on June 30, 2020 and the fair
value was determined with reference to market based evidence, active market prices and relevant information. The fair
value of investment property fall under level 2 of fair value hierarchy (i.e. significant observable inputs).

                                   

6 INTANGIBLE ASSET

NET BOOK 
VALUE

%

Computer software 11,250,649        -                     1,250,649      250,130          250,130          500,260           750,389            20

NET BOOK 
VALUE

%

Computer software - 946,052,1                                    1,250,649 -                                

COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION

Amortisation 
Rate

As at July 01, 
2019 Additions

As at June 30, 
2020

As at July 01, 
2019

Charge for the 
year

As at June 30, 
2020

(Rupees)

COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION

Amortisation 
Rate

As at July 01, 
2018 Additions

As at June 30, 
2019

As at July 01, 
2018

Charge for the 
year

As at June 30, 
2019

As at June 30, 
2019

(Rupees)

As at June 30, 
2020

250,130250,130 1,000,519 20
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7.6 Represents expenses incured on various projects of the Company related to the contruction of investment property.

The movement in capital work-in-progress 22002200 2019

during the year is as follows:

As at July 01 28,308,153          24,273,666            

Additions during the year --                         4,034,487              

As at June 30 28,308,153          28,308,153            

8 DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY

22002200 2019

Land         801,225,879           801,225,879 
Design and consultancy         176,769,050           129,251,534 
Project management and anciliary costs         330,225,183           280,391,870 
Other project costs         129,167,672              54,273,687 

1,437,387,784   1,265,142,970     

Rupees

Represents project under construction at Plot No 22/7, Street CL-9, Civil Lines Quarter, Karachi. The project is currently in
the initial design stages of the project with construction due to commence after approval of design.

Rupees

9 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS – unsecured, considered good Note

Security deposits:
-  Total PARCO Pakistan Limited 22,500,000            2,500,000              
-  Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 2200,000                200,000                  
-  City District Government Karachi 886,919                  86,919                     

9.1 22,786,919            2,786,919              

9.1 These deposits are non-interest bearing.

10 DEFERRED TAX ASSET - net

Deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences:
- Unused tax losses -                         152,905,734         
Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences:
- Operating fixed assets -                         (38,880,870)          
- Advance against rent, maintinance and other 
      services (net of receivables) ((15,808,675)        (17,188,200)          

(15,808,675)        (56,069,070)          
(15,808,675)        96,836,664            

11 RECEIVABLE AGAINST RENT, MAINTENANCE AND 
OTHER SERVICES 

Receivables against rent 11.1 774,078,762          24,386,706            

Receivables against services
2.11ecnanetniam tsniaga selbavieceR           16,794,438 7,854,183

3.11secivres rehto tsniaga selbavieceR           26,088,143 32,605,301

Receivables against electricity and air conditioning services 11.4               3,234,508 32,824,138

          46,117,089              73,283,622 

5.11sessol tiderc detcepxe rof ecnawollA :sseL                (155,022)                  (806,623)

11.6 1120,040,829 96,863,705
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111.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5 Movement of allowance for expected credit loss on receivables 22002200 2019
is as follows:

Opening balance                 806,623                                  -   
(Reversal) / charge for the year                (651,601)                    806,623 
Closing balance                 155,022                    806,623 

11.6

11.7

22002200 2019

TPL Trakker Limited 883,703,104          142,634,729         

TPL Insurance Limited 117,809,590          47,948,555            

TPL Life Insurance Limited 665,410                  12,300                     

TPL Security Services (Pvt) Limited                       1,130                                  -   

TPL Logsitics Private Limited                       3,390                                  -   

This includes receivables from parties other than related parties amounting to Rs. 21.99 million (2019: Rs Nil) which is past
due but impaired. 

The maximum amount outstanding receivable from the related parties at any time during the year calculated by reference
to month end balances was as follows:

Rupees

This includes receivable from TPL trakker Limited amounting to Rs. Nil (2019: Rs. 7.85 million) and TPL Insurance Limited
amounting to Rs. Nil (2019: Rs. 15.35 million). This amount is neither past due nor impaired.

This includes receivable from TPL trakker Limited amounting to Rs. 4.23 million (2019: Nil) . This amount is neither past due
nor impaired.

This includes receivable from TPL trakker Limited amounting to Rs. 17.18 milion (2019: Nil) and TPL Insurance Limited
amounting to Rs. 1.12 million (2019: Nil). This amount is neither past due nor impaired.

This includes receivable from TPL trakker Limited amounting to Rs. 1.35 milion (2019: Nil), TPL Insurance Limited
amounting to Rs. 0.15 million (2019: Nil), TPL Life Insurance Limited amounting to Rs. 0.065 million (2019: Nil), TPL Security
Services (Private) Limited Rs. 0.001 million (2019: Nil), and TPL Logistics (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 0.003 million
(2019: Nil). This amount is neither past due nor impaired.

 Rupees 

12 LOANS, ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Note

Loans
Loan to employees 808,568               703,667

                  

808,568               703,667                  
Advances – unsecured, considered good
  Supp 1.21srotcartnoc dna sreil 21,109,918         76,386,077            
  Advance against development property -                         214,675,336         
  Others 12.2 115,000,000         10,000,000            

36,109,918         301,061,413         
Prepayments
Insurance 2,880,860            6,303,418              

Others - sales tax receivable 6,773,571            -                            
46,572,917         308,068,498         

12.1

12.2

22002200 2019
13 DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES Note

TPL Holdings (Private) Limited - Ultimate Parent Company -                         464,932                  
TPL Life Insurance - an associated company 203,845               3,042,483              

13.1 2203,845               3,507,415              

Rupees 

This represents financing provided to Pearl Securities Limited for the purpose ofinvestment which carries markup at the rate of 10% per annum
and is receivable on demand.

These advances are non-interest bearing and generally on an average term of 1 to 12 months.
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15.1

15.2

16 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2020 2019 22002200 2019

(No. of shares) (Rupees) 
Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each       

175,920,448    175,920,448      -  Issued for cash consideration 1,759,204,480   1,759,204,480     
-  Issued for consideration   

151,472,658    151,472,658      other than cash        16.3, 16.4 & 16.5 1,514,726,580   1,514,726,580     

327,393,106    327,393,106      3,273,931,060   3,273,931,060     

16.1

16.2

Included herein a cash deposit of Rs. 16.854 million under lien (note 23.2.1) and Rs. 100 million in a saving account placed with a commercial
bank carrying mark-up ranging 6 percent to 7 percent and 10.25 percent respectively. Other balances carry mark-up ranging from 5.5 percent to
6.5 percent (2019: 3.75 percent to 5.8 percent) per annum.

Note

16.1 & 16.2

158,010,000 ordinary shares were issued against acquisition of the business of A&A Associates, an unregistered partnership firm under an
agreement dated June 28, 2010 on net assets basis at their carrying value which approximates its fair value at the date of acquisition i.e. May 31,
2010.

17,910,448 ordinary shares were issued to Alpha Beta Capital Markets (Private) Limited on 21 Jun 2017 against cash at premium of Rs. 6.75 per
share.

This represents allowance for expected credit loss on cash at bank balances, as a charge for the year amounting to Rs. 1,119,537 (2019: Nil).

13.1

22002200 2019

TPL Holdings (Private) Limited -                         464,932                  
TPL Life Insurance Limited 203,845               3,042,483              

14 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Note

Investments in mutual funds 
   (designated at fair value through p 1.41)ssol ro tifor 49,857,359         45,898,517            

49,857,359         45,898,517            

14.1 Investment in mutual funds - at fair value through profit or loss

22002200 2019 Name of Mutual Fund
Carrying 

Value Fair value Carrying Value Fair value

2,867,492         2,591,261            NBP Money Market Fund       28,298,487 28,337,982    25,580,801            25,624,257            
203                     386,803               Pak Oman investment 110,639             10,673             20,432,162            20,274,260            

413,914             -                          AKD Aggressive Income Fund 221,357,807    21,133,886    -                            -                            
5,578                  -                          AKD Securities Limited 3300,654          374,818          -                            -                            

3,287,187         2,978,064            449,967,587    49,857,359    46,012,963            45,898,517            

22002200 2019
15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note Rupees

Cash in hand 243,623               525,537                  
Cash at banks in local currency
  current accounts 8,524,817            34,845,868            
  saving 1.51stnuocca s 224,099,254       181,663,613         

232,624,071       216,509,481         

Less: Allowance for exp 2.51sessol tiderc detce (1,199,537)          -                            

231,668,157       217,035,018         

Number of units

2019
Rupees Rupees 

22002200

These amounts are non-interest bearing and are receivable on demand. The maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year
calculated by reference to month end balances was as follows:

Rupees
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116.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

16.7 Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to their shareholding.

22002200 2019
17 LONG-TERM FINANCINGS Note

1.71setacifitrec ecnanif mreT 2,006,134,027   2,108,762,771     
Long-term financing 2.71s 576,270,000       -                            
Musharika finance facility 17.3 1132,249,222       187,249,222         
JS Bank Limited - payroll financing 17.4 119,847,680         -                            
Diminishing Musharika arrang 5.71stneme 39,054,303         -                            
JS Bank Limited - project financing 17.6 775,000,000         -                            

2,848,555,232   2,296,011,993     
Less : Current maturity (191,117,792)     (165,000,000)       

2,657,437,440   2,131,011,993     

 Rupees

40,206,171 bonus shares were issued of Rs. 10 each as fully paid bonus shares to the members in proportion of 1.4 shares for every 10 shares
held (i.e. 14%) on October 12, 2018.

49,990,000 ordinary shares issued were against acquisition of the business of A&A Associates, an unregistered partnership firm under an
agreement dated June 28, 2010 on net assets basis at their carrying value which approximates its fair value at the date of acquisition i.e. May 31,
2010.

47,600,919 ordinary shares issued against purchase of 8,532,000 ordinary shares of HKC Limited, constituting 90 percent of the issued,
subscribed and paid-up share capital of the subsidiary company under a share purchase arrangement dated: June 19, 2017 through issuance
of 47,600,919 shares of TPL Properties Limited at face value of Rs. 10 per share and premium of Rs. 6.75 per share on net asset basis at their fair
value determined on the date of acquisition i.e. March 30, 2017.

13,675,568 bonus shares were issued of Rs. 10 each as fully paid bonus shares to the members in proportion of 0.5 shares for every 10 shares
held (i.e. 5%) on 16 August 2018.

17.1

-

- First pari pasu charge on present and future fixed assets (plant, machinery, fixtures and fittings, etc.);
- First pari pasu charge charge over land and building with 25% margin; and

- Assignment over rental agreements; and

-

17.2

The Holding Company entered into an agreement with a financial institution, dated March 14, 2018 , for the issuance of
redeemable capital in the amount of Rs. 3.5 billion in the form of Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) of the face value of Rs.
5,000/- each. Out of the total proposed issuance, the TFCs issued and TFCs proposed to be issued, are detailed as follows:

sum equal to Rs. 2,200,000,000 as a first tranche (Series A TFC Issue) comprising of 440,000 TFCs, issued during
the previous year for the purpose of prepaying the outstanding Musharaka Facility in the amount of Rs.
1,796,000,000 availed by the Company; and for financing of the construction project of HKC (Private) Limited
(Subsidiary Company). The amount received against issuance of Series A TFCs is repayable in semi-annual
installments for a period of 10 years at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 125 basis points. This facility was fully drawn
during last year and has been secured against the following:

sum equal to Rs. 1,300,000,000 as a second tranche (Series B TFC Issue), proposed to be issued for the purpose of
making an equity investment upcoming new project/development.

During the year, the Holding Company has availed the facilty of Rs. 600 million from a commerial bank through an
agreement dated January 2020. The purpose of availing the facility is financing of equity instrument in TPL Logistic Park
(Private) Limited (Subsidiary Company). The amount received is repayable in 20 equal quarterly installments for a period of
7 years (inclusive of 2 years grace period) at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 165 basis points. The facility has been secured
against the following:

- First pari pasu charge on present and future fixed assets (plant, machinery, fixtures and fittings, etc.)
- First pari passu mortgage over land and building with 25% margin;
- A pari passu assignment over existing rental agreements;
- A pari passu assignment over existing contracts;
- A pari passu assignment over existing dividend income of the company (from HKC (Private) Limited);
- Exclusive assignment of existing dividend income of the company (from TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited); and
- Lien over collecton account Debt Payment Account and Debt Service Reserve Account
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117.3

17.4

17.5

The Group entered into the Musharika facility agreement of Rs. 275 million with a commercial bank dated December 06,
2016. The purpose of the loan is to repay loan from a director and loan from financial institutions. The amount received
against the facility is repayable in semi-annual installments for a period of 6 years at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 200
basis points. The facility has been secured against the following:

- First hypo charge on present and future plant and machinery of CMS with 25% margin;
- Assignment over maintainance agreements including utilities, general maintainance and IT services; and
- Corporate guarantees of TPL Properties upto Rs. 367 million.

The Holding Company has availed the refinance scheme of Rs. 29.803 million from a commerial bank through an
agreement dated January 14, 2020. The purpose of availing the facility is to finance 3 months salaries of the workers and
employees of business concerns for combating impact of COVID-19 under the SBP Refinance Scheme. The amount
received is repayable in 8 equal quarterly installments for a period of 2 years and 6 months (inclusive of 6 months grace
period) at the rate of SBR plus 3%. The facility has been secured against the following:

- First pari pasu charge on present and future fixed assets;
- First pari pasu charge on present and future current assets;
- Corporate guarantee of TPL Trakker Limited; and
- Assignment of receivables from TPL Insurance Limited

The Holding Company has entered into the Musharaka facility agreement of Rs. 45,353,383 with a commercial modaraba
company dated December 29, 2019. The purpose of the loan is to purchase HPE Proliant DL 380 Generation 10 server &
core switches, access switches and transceivers. The amount received against the facility is repayable in monthly
installments for a period of 3 years at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 350 basis points. The facility has been secured
against the following:

- Title of the assets in the name of Modaraba Company for the entire facilty tenor; and
- Post dated cheques for the entire facilty tenor

17.6

22002200 2019
18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note

Creditors 88,269,529          35,021,628          
Provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) 18.1 776,391,813          -                            
Payable to contractors -                         21,157,183          
Retention money 5,809,251            5,809,251             
Sales tax payable -                         3,118,599             
Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) --                         9,290,946             
Payable to employ 2.81see 11,107,183            541,654                 
Withholding income tax payable 11,342,304            2,096,363             
Others 898,750                898,750                 

18.3 1173,818,830       77,934,374          

18.1 In accordance with the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2011 (GIDC Act, 2011), the Holding Company was
required to pay GIDC to applicable supplier of Gas, as specified in the First Schedule and at rates specified in the Second
Schedule to the GIDC Act, 2011.

Rupees

The Group has availed the facilty of Rs. 75 million from a commerial bank through an agreement dated December 27, 2019.
The purpose of availing the facility is to finance HKC (Private) Limited residential/commercial building project. The amount
received is repayable in 10 equal quarterly installments for a period of 2.5 years at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 300 basis
points. The facility has been secured against the following:

- Equitable mortgage charge to the extent of PKR 100M over fixed asset of the company; and
- Corporate Gurantee of M/s. TPL Properties Limited.
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118.2

18.3 These payables are non-interest bearing and generally on an average term of 1 to 12 months.

22002200 2019
19 DUE TO RELATED PARTIES – unsecured Note

Parent Company
TPL Corp Limited 4,531,886            -                            

Associated Companies
TPL Insurance Limited -                         6,097,824             
TPL Trakker Limited 5,700,233            4,287,788             
TPL Security Services (Private) Limited 113,256,100          -                            

19.1 223,488,219          10,385,612          

19.1

22002200 2019
20 ACCRUED MARK-UP Note

Accrued mark-up on:

Long-term financing 71s 993,155,109          83,426,695          
Markup on Diminishing Musharaka Arrangements 5552,944                -                            
Short term borrowing 12deruces - s 113,747,833          13,780,751          

107,455,886       97,207,446          

21 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

 Rupees

Rupees

Subsequently, on 13 August 2020, Supreme Court of Pakistan has announced a judgement, "As all industrial and
commercial entities which consume gas for their business activities pass on the burden to their customers / clients
therefore all arrears of ‘Cess’ that have become due upto 31 July 2020 and have not been recovered so far shall be
recovered by the Companies responsible under the GIDC Act, 2015 to recover from their consumers. However, as a
concession, the same be recovered in twenty four equal monthly installments starting from 01 August 2020 without the
component oflate payment surcharge". Accordingly, the Holding Company has recognised a provision in these
consolidated financial statements and the Holding Company intends to pay the amount within next 12 months.

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of the Section 218 of the Companies
Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

During the year, the Holding Company has enetered into a musharakah agreement with an islamic bank of Rs. 400 million
to create joint ownership in the Centrepoint Project against bank's share of 6.49%. The amount is repayable through
quarterly payments at the rate of 2.5% plus 3 months KIBOR, as consideration for use of bank's share by the Holding
Company. The said periodic payments are secured against equitable interest over the Centrepoint Project.

Represents the amount payable to related parties on account of expenses incurred and services acquired by the Group.

22002200 2019
22 ADVANCES FROM TENANTS - Uunsecured Note

Advance against rent

Related Parties (associated companies)
TPL Trakker Limited 113,270,395          -                            
TPL Insurance Limited 88,756,681            -                            

22,027,076          -                        

Others 97,549,710          113,944,849        
119,576,786       113,944,849        

Advances against maintenance services (contractual liabilities)

Related Parties (an associated company)
TPL Insurance Limited 66,254,375            7,900,983             

Others 22,171,124          30,683,603          
28,425,499          38,584,586          

22.1 1148,002,285       152,529,435        

Rupees

126



Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

222.1

23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

23.1 Contingencies

23.1.1.

23.1.2.

22002200 2019
23.2 Commitments

23.2.1 Bank Guarantee

Outstanding amount 116,854,000          16,854,000          
Unutilised amount --                         -                            

23.2.2

22002200 2019

Dimensions
-  Total contract value 22,383,393            -                            
-  Paid upto last year by the Group ((1,000,000)           -                            
Balance commitment 11,383,393            -                            

Represents non-interest bearing advances received from tenants on account of premises taken on rent in Centrepoint 
Project and related services thereon.

The Group’s material contractual commitments in respect of the construction of Centrepoint Project at year end are
as follows:

Rupees

The Group has filed a petition before the Honorable Sindh High Court challenging the vires of Section 5A of Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 introduced through Finance Act, 2017, whereby the Group is required to make payment of additional
amount of 7.5% of the accounting profit after tax. The Court passed an interim order that no coercive action would be taken
against the petitioner under the garb of the impugned Section, as has been passed in similar other petitions pending
adjudication. The matter is still at hearing stage and management is confident of a favorable outcome, accordingly, no
provision has been recorded in the consolidated financial statements in this regard.

The Group does not charge SST on its rental income on the ground that lending property on rent is not a service. The
Group had challenged the above levy before the Honorable High Court of Sindh (SHC). The SHC held, vide its judgment
dated August 18, 2017, that the renting ofimmovable properties shall not be services on the premise that such activity is
not covered in the definition of economic activity as provided in the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011. The said order
of High Court of Sindh has been challenged by the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) before the Honorable Supreme Court of
Pakistan (SCP) simultaneously the Sindh Legislature has amended the definition of economic activity to neutralize effect of
the said judgment of the Court. Certain taxpayers have again challenged the levy of sindh sales tax on renting ofimmovable
property on the basis that it does not involve any element of service and that the judgement of SHC is still in-tact. SHC has
also granted stay to the said taxpayers. The management is also of the view that the judgement of SHC is still intact and,
therefore, currently no SST is being charged by the Group while invoicing rentals, Accordingly, no provision has been made
in the consolidated financial statements in this respect.

Rupees 

Greaves Pakistan (Private) Limited
-  Total contract value 9996,373                -                        
-  Paid during the year by the Group ((498,186)              -                        
Balance commitment 4498,187                -                            

23.2.3 The Group had entered into commercial property leases on its investment property with TTL and TLI and other
tenants. These non-cancellable leases have terms of five years. Future minimum rentals receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases as at year end are as follows:

22002200 2019

Not later than one year 4402,923,769        361,821,710        
Later than one year but not later than five years 11,166,516,404   1,245,649,621    

1,569,440,173   1,607,471,331    

Note
Rupees
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222002200 2019
Note

Rupees

24 INCOME

Rental Income
Related parties (associated companies):

TPL Trakker Limited 68,446,879          48,035,046          
TPL Insurance Limited 669,821,333          51,002,892          

138,268,212       99,037,938          

Others 337,925,891       303,556,731        
Less: Discounts (9,729,529)           -                            

328,196,362       303,556,731        
Revenue for services to tenants 466,464,574       402,594,669        
Revenue from maintenance and other related services
Related parties (associated companies):

TPL Trakker Limited 12,202,920          9,972,587             
TPL Insurance Limited 112,431,210          10,193,348          

24,634,130          20,165,935          
Others 70,905,646          69,448,820          

95,539,776          89,614,755          
Revenue from electricity and air conditioning services
Related parties (associated companies):
TPL Trakker Limited 27,630,607          23,455,577          
TPL Insurance Limited 110,084,961          8,090,108             

37,715,568          31,545,685          
 Others 76,415,981          74,993,101          
 114,131,549       106,538,786        
Revenue from IT services 
TPL Trakker Limited (an associated company) 29,779,794          27,537,931          

705,915,693       626,286,141        

Less: Sales tax on services ((27,547,474)        (29,079,891)         

678,368,219       597,206,250        

25 DIRECT OPERATING COSTS

Salaries and wages 449,980,297          50,473,548          
Oil, g 1.52 leseid dna sa 129,589,961       46,089,707          
Depreciation -                         39,152,646          
Housekeeping and cleaning 14,027,532          14,444,400          
Insurance 7,978,628            8,107,485             
Repairs and maintenance 77,807,000            10,546,900          
Landscaping and plantation 33,765,000            4,223,000             
Water exp 2.52ten - sesne 2,796,766            919,956                 
Duties and taxes 1,031,628            375,146                 

216,976,812       174,332,788        

25.1

25.2 These include water expenses net of reimbursement from tenants.

This includes provision for GIDC Cess amounting to Rs. 65,292,148 (2019: NIL) as dislcosed in note 18.1 to these
consolidated financial statements.
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222002200 2019
26 ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES Note

Salaries, wag 1.62stifeneb rehto dna se 44,101,524          39,187,818          
Legal and professional 222,198,610          20,881,518          
Repairs and maintenance 229,206,454          14,770,540          
Insurance 2,916,543            12,380,216          
Rent 11,737,841          9,358,833             

3.62snoitanoD 3,400,000            7,500,000             
Fuel and mobile 1,689,978            4,252,307             
Gym running expenses 33,650,034            3,600,000             
Entertainment and recreation 11,872,822            4,280,304             
Dep 1.5noitaicer 3,611,320            3,595,573             

6noitazitromA 250,130                250,130                 
2.62 noitarenumer ’srotiduA 4,362,206            3,050,207             

Advertisement 1,428,695            2,715,014             
Printing and stationery 1,269,967            2,759,963             
Travelling 1,321,715            2,459,306             
IT related expenses 11,115,927            1,626,783             
Provision for expected credit losses 5547,936                -                            
Subscriptions 226,950                900,098                 
Staff welfare 309,980                352,277                 
Utilities 714,588                2,188,742             
Training and development 440,460                  338,759                 
Courier and telecommunication 3311,478                777,979                 
Reversal for Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) ((9,290,946)           -                            
Others 14,366,142          2,164,952             

141,360,354       139,391,319        

26.1 These include Rs. 3.865 (2019: Rs. 0.929) million in respect of staff retirement benefits (provident fund contribution).

22002200 2019
26.2 Auditors’ remuneration 

Audit fees
Statutory

     - standalone 2,758,000            1,845,700             
     - consolidation 275,000                250,000                 

3,033,000            2,095,700             

Half yearly review, code of corporate governance review and certifications 9958,100                871,000                 
Out of pocket 371,106                83,507                    

1,329,206            954,507                 
4,362,206            3,050,207             

26.3 Represents donations made to the following parties:

Sindh Institute of Urology and Transplantation (SIUT) Trust 22,500,000            2,500,000             
The Aga Khan University Hospital (The Patient's Behbud Society for AKUH) 5500,000                -                            
World Wide Fund for Nature Pakistan --                         350,000                 
Friends of Pink Ribbon Karachi Chapter 2200,000                200,000                 
IBA-Event Hall -                         1,950,000             
The Indus Hospital -                         2,500,000             
Pakistan Institute of Labor Education & Research 2200,000                -                            

3,400,000            7,500,000             

26.3.1 The recipients of donations do not include any donee in which a director or spouse had any interest.

Rupees

Rupees
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 22002200 2019
27 FINANCE COSTS Note

Markup on
-   long-term financings 3351,657,830     243,575,079       
-   assets under Diminishing Musharaka Arrangement 55,029,255          -                           
-   short-term borrowings 661,760,110       46,078,572          

418,447,195     289,653,651       
Bank charges 624,433             562,875                

419,071,628     290,216,526       

28 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Profit on savings accounts 112,995,439       33,389,000          
Exchange gain (64,898)              42,026                   
Dividend income 4,570,351          1,045,606            
Unrealized gain on investment in mutual funds 383,601             99,157                   

Gain on disposal of investments in subsidary
Gain on disposal of investments in mutual funds 3,339,941

          5,583,720            
Mark-up on investments 744,384             -

-
-

                                                      
21,968,818       40,159,509          

Income from non-financial assets
Fair value gain on investment property 7 2292,165,699     666,992,964       
Income from ancillary services --                       945,000                
Others 3,353,363          942,838                

295,519,062     668,880,802       
317,487,880     709,040,311       

29 TAXATION

Current 7,954,306          36,431,290          
Prior (13,990,296)      -                           
Deferred 111,276,616     (10,379,286)        

105,240,626     26,052,004          

29.2

Rupees

The proceedings for amendment of assessment for the tax year 2018 have been initiated by the Additional Commissioner
under Section 122(9) read with section 122(5A) of the Ordinance.

In response to the same, the Group has submitted relevant information along with all necessary evidences. There has been
no further correspondence from the department since then and the proceeding is yet to be finalised. Accordingly, no
provision has been recorded in the consolidated financial statements in this respect.

2299..11 Relationship between accounting profit and tax expense

Profit before taxation 2218,447,305     702,305,928    

Applicable tax rate 229% 29%

Tax at the above rate 663,349,718        203,668,719    

Effect of non-taxable income for tax purpose ((105,582,815)    (193,701,383)  

Effect of over claim deductions for tax purpose --                        (1,364,197)        

Non-deductible expense for tax purpose - net 2205,222,756     -                       

Others (268,230,285)    (34,655,143)     

Tax expense for the year ((105,240,626)    (26,052,004)     

Effective tax rate 448.18% 3.71%
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229.3

22002200 2019
30 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 1113,206,679     676,253,922       

Number of shares 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 3327,393,106     327,393,106       

Earnings per share – basic and diluted 00.35 2.07

There is no dilutive effect on basic earnings per share of the Group.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) has amended the assessment of the Group by passing an Order under
Section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2017 thereby creating a tax demand of Rs.7,931,385/-
however out of Rs 34 million, Rs 33 million has been received against the refund for tax year 2017 on June 30, 2020.
Management is confident about receiving the remaining amount and therefore no provision for the above demand has
been made in these consolidated financial statements.

Rupees

31 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND OTHER EXECUTIVES

31.1 The aggregate amounts charged in these consolidated financial statements for the year are as follows:

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

- Director's fee (Note 31.3) --                   -                          2200,000          380,000            --                          -                                  

      22,451,613 - 22,451,61322,451,613                               -                                  28,373,244                 

- Bonus --                   -                          -                       -                       --

1,920,0101,920,010

                          -                                  

- Retirement benefit --                   

1,548,3871,548,387

-                          -                       -                       

37,030,85237,030,852

                 1,457,359                    

- Medical           1,548,387 -                                  -                                        1,745,861                    

Total       24,000,000        2200,000          380,000                       31,576,464                 

Number of persons 11 1 33 3 6

31.2

31.3 Represents aggregate of meeting fees paid / payable to non-executive directors.

31.4

31.5 The total number of directors as at the reporting date were 8 (2019: 8).

32 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

 Chief Executive Directors  Other Executives 

- Managerial remuneration, 
utilities, housing perquisites, 
etc.

In addition, the Chief Executive has also been provided with free use of Company owned and maintained car and other benefits
in accordance with their entitlements as per the rules of the Group.

As per revised requirement of the Act, executive means an employee, other than chief executive and directors, whose basic
salary exceeds twelve hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.

The related parties of the Group comprise of the Ultimate Parent Company, Parent Company, subsidiaries, associated
companies, major shareholders, suppliers, directors, key management personnel and staff retirement benefit fund. All the
transactions with related parties are entered into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The
transactions with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Rupees 

24,000,00024,000,000 41,253,65541,253,655

2,302,7932,302,793

7
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222002200 2019

Parent Company
TPL Corp Limited
Expenses paid on behalf of the Holding Company 4,531,886         -                             

Common Directorship

TPL Trakker Limited
Amount received from TTL -                       -                             
Payment made to TTL on account of accrued markup -                       -                             
Payment made by the Group 28,498,000       20,759,440            
Mark-up on current account -                       -

-

                             
Expenses incurred/paid by TTL on behalf of the Group 38,390,049       17,697,413            
Expenses paid by the Group 8,014,673         
Amount received from TTL on account of rent and other services 180,965,630    122,452,842          
Services rendered by the Group

                       

 

92,977,576            128,792,776                

Rupees

TPL Insurance Limited
Amount against rent received during the year by the Holding Company 120,085,898    33,900,912            
Services acquired by the Group 89,747,148       51,002,892            
Expenses incurred / paid by TIL on behalf of the Group -                       3,625,204               
Payment made by the Holding Company 6,097,828         -                             
Services rendered by the Group 17,705,335       17,705,335            
Amount received against maintenance and other services by the Group 4,800,000         23,732,177            

TPL Life Insurance Limited [TLIL]
Expenses paid by the Holding Company on behalf of TLIL 4,578,101          5,088,933            
Expenses incurred/paid by TLIL on behalf the Holding Company 2,551,329          -                          
Amount received from TLIL 4,800,000          3,259,440            

TPL Security Services (Private) Limited
Services acquired by the Group 12,320,880       10,652,400         
Amount paid against services --                       8,805,984            

Staff retirement benefit fund

Group – Provident fund
  Employer contribution 66,420,588          5,349,244            

32.1

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

33.1 Market risk

33.1.1 Currency risk

The related parties status of outstanding receivables and payables, if any, as at June 30, 2020 and 30 June 2019 are
disclosed in respective notes to these consolidated financial statements.

The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of the risk which are summarised below and
accordingly, no change was made in the objectives, policies or procedures and assumptions during the year ended June
30, 2020.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist
due to transactions entered into foreign currencies. As at reporting date, the Group is not materially exposed to
currency risk and accordingly, the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the exchange rate with all other
variables held constant in not reported
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liquidity risk in respect of long-term financings, short-term borrowings, trade and other payables and due to related parties.

333.1.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. As of the reporting date, the Group's exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term financing and short-term borrowings at floating
interest rates. The Group manages its interest rate risk by placing its excess funds in saving accounts in banks.

Increase / 
decrease in 
basis points

(Decrease) / 
increase in 

profit before tax
(Rupees) 

2020 +100 (27,634,704)      
-100 27,634,704       

)211,815,32(001+9102         
-100 23,518,112         

33.1.3 Other price risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, on the Group’s profit before tax (through impact on floating rate borrowings).

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices such as equity price risk. As of the reporting date, the Group is not exposed to other
price risk.

33.2 Credit risk

Statement of 
financial 
position

Maximum 
exposure

Statement of 
financial 
position

Maximum 
exposure

Receivables against rent, maintenance and 
other services    120,040,829    120,040,829         96,863,705         96,863,705 

Due from related parties             203,845             203,845            3,507,415            3,507,415 
Bank balances    231,424,534    231,424,534      216,509,481      216,509,481 

   351,669,208    351,669,208      316,880,601      316,880,601 

As of reporting date, the credit quality of Group’s bank balances with reference to external credit rating is as follows:

Rating Agency 22002200 2019

PACRA 55,658,261       3,853,516          
JCR-VIS 44,754,891       30,892,548       
PACRA 55,715,768       85,211,451       
JCR-VIS 114,740,463     17,512,250       
JCR-VIS 2201,754,688  79,039,716       

232,624,071  216,509,481    

3333..33 LLiiqquuiiddiittyy rriisskk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge
an obligation. As of the reporting date, the Group is exposed to credit risk on receivable against rent from tenants, and bank
balances. The Group manages credit risk by obtaining advance from tenants and the credit risk on liquid assets is limited
because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings. The maximum exposure to credit risk before any
credit enhancement is given below:

2020 2019

Bank Balances by short-term rating category
Rupees

A2

Rupees Rupees

A1+
A-1+

A1

A3

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations with the financial liabilities.
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance working capital management. As of the reporting date, the Group is exposed to
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On Less than 1 to 5 More than 
demand 3 months Years 5 years

June 30, 2019

Long-term financings -                 82,500,000       82,500,000           1,188,249,222    941,250,829        2,294,500,051    
Short-term borrowings --              -                        400,000,000 -                                    -                            400,000,000        
Trade and other payables -                 5,214,962          62,529,716           10,189,696 -                                       77,934,374           
Due to related parties -                 -                        10,385,612 -                                       -                            10,385,612           
Accrued mark-up -                 97,207,446 -                                   -                            -                            97,207,446           

-                 184,922,408    555,415,328        1,198,438,918    941,250,829        2,880,027,483    

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at June 30, 2020 and June, 30 2019 based
on contractual undiscounted payment dates and present market interest rates:

Rupees

3 to 12 months Total

3333...44 FFaaiiirr   vvaallluueess   ooff   ffiiinnaanncciiiaalll   iiinnssttrruummeennttss

Fair value hierarchy

Financial instruments carried at fair value are categorized as follows:

Level 1: Quoted market price.
Level 2: Valuation techniques (market observable)
Level 3: Valuation techniques (non- market observables)

The Group held the following financial instruments 
measured at fair value: Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

June 30, 2020
Investment property (note 7)         28,308,153                           -             28,308,153                              -   
Investment in mutual funds (note 14)         49,857,359        49,857,359 -                                                      -   

        78,165,512        49,857,359           28,308,153                              -   

June 30, 2019
Investment property (note 7)     6,874,579,344                                -          6,874,579,344                                   -   
Investment in mutual funds (note 14)            45,898,517           45,898,517 -                                                                -   

    6,920,477,861           45,898,517        6,874,579,344                                   -   

33.4.1 Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2:

Rupees

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability can be settled, between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The carrying amounts of all the financial instruments reflected in these
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair value.

Fair values ofinvestments in units of mutual funds are determined based on redemption prices disclosed at the Mutual
Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) as at the close of the business days.

On Less than 1 to 5 More than 
demand 3 months Years 5 years

June 30, 2020

Long-term financings --              88,000,000           88,000,000            1,482,500,000           1,200,000,000           2,858,500,000           
Short-term borrowings --              -                           400,000,000          -                                -                                400,000,000              
Trade and other payables --              -                           195,230,383          -                                -                                195,230,383              
Due to related parties --              -                           22,206,298            -                                -                                22,206,298                 
Accrued mark-up --              104,486,276         -                            -                                -                                104,486,276              

-              192,486,276         705,436,681          1,482,500,000           1,200,000,000           3,580,422,957           

Rupees

3 to 12 months Total
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33.5 Capital risk management 

22002200 2019
Note

Long-term financing 71s 22,848,555,232   2,296,011,993      
Trade and other pay 81selba 1173,818,830       77,934,374            
Due to related p 91seitra 223,488,219          10,385,612            
Accrued mark-up 20 1107,455,886       97,207,446            
Short-term borrowing 12s 4400,000,000       400,000,000          
Advance ag 22stnanet morf tner tsnia 148,002,285       152,529,435          
Total debts 3,701,320,452   3,034,068,860      

Less: Cash and bank balances 2281,525,516       262,933,535          

Net debt 3,419,794,936   2,771,135,325      

Total equity 6,510,385,005   6,397,178,326      

Total capital 9,930,179,941   9,168,313,651      

Gearing ratio 34% 30%

Rupees

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. The
Group monitors capital using a debt equity ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. Equity comprises of share capital,
capital reserve and revenue reserve. The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 are as follows:

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to
support and sustain future development ofits business operations and maximize shareholders’ value. The Group closely
monitors the return on capital along with the level of distributions to ordinary shareholders.

34 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION OF ISSUE

35 GENERAL

35.1

35.2

35.3

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on 9th September, 2020 by the Board of Directors of
the Group.

Certain prior year’s figures have been rearranged for better presentation, wherever necessary.

Number of employees as at June 30, 2020 was 146 (June 30, 2019: 146) and average number of employees during the
year was 143 (June 30, 2019: 142).

Figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation. However, there has been no
material reclassification to report.

Chief Financial OfficerChief Executive Officer Director
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of TPL Properties Limited 
(“Company”) will be held on Tuesday, 27th October, 2020 at 12:15 p.m. to transact the following 
business: 

(Members are requested to attend and participate in the AGM through video link facility as there will be 
no venue to prevent pandemic outbreak of COVID-19 (Corona Virus)).

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To approve the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on October 22, 2019.

 “RESOLVED THAT the minutes of Annual General Meeting of TPL Properties Limited held on 
October 22, 2019 at 12:00 noon be and are hereby approved.”

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial 
Statements of the Company together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ and Chairman Review 
Report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2020.

 “RESOLVED THAT the Annual Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of 
TPL Properties Limited, together with the Directors’, Auditors’ and Chairman’s Review Report 
thereon for the year ended 30 June 2020 be and are hereby approved.”

3.  To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2021 and fix their remuneration. M/s. EY Ford 
Rhodes, Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible, have offered themselves for 
re-appointment.

 “RESOLVED THAT M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants be and are hereby appointed 
as Auditors of M/s. TPL Properties Limited on the basis of consent received from them, at a fee 
mutually agreed for the period ending June 30, 2021.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. To consider and, if thought fit, amend the Articles of Association of the Company, to conform 
with the requirements of the applicable regulations/rules in respect of further issue of share 
capital, and pass the following resolution as a special resolution, with or without modification:

 “RESOLVED THAT the Article of Association of the Company, be and is hereby amended, 
subject to any modifications as may be required by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan and the fulfilment of all formalities / procedures required under the applicable 
regulations/rules by adding the following new sub-article (iv) in Article 25:

  (iv) reserve certain percentage of further issue for its employees under Employees 
Stock Option Scheme.

  (v) issue share of different classes and kinds with differential rights.”

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, special resolution for 
enhancement in the remuneration of non-executive directors from PKR 20,000/- per meeting 
(including sub-committee meetings) to PKR 100,000/- per meeting (including sub-committee 
meetings):

 “RESOLVED THAT the enhancement in the remuneration of non-executive directors from PKR 
20,000/- per meeting (including sub-committee meetings) to PKR 100,000/- per meeting 
(including sub-committee meetings) be and is hereby approved.
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6. To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions 
as special resolutions to create, offer, issue and allot shares under TPL Properties Limited 
Employee Stock Option Scheme 2020 (the ESOP Scheme) under Companies (Further Issue of 
Capital) Regulations, 2020.

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 83 of the Companies Act, 2017(the Act) read along with 
regulation 7 of the Companies (Further Issue of Capital) Regulations, 2020 and Memorandum 
and Articles of Association of the Company, approval of the members be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company, for setting aside of  10% of the shareholders 
Equity/Paid-Up Capital as Stock Options to be awarded to the Key Managerial Personnel and 
other key employees, from time to time, as a mechanism to attract, retain and motive them to 
realize the stated business goals.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to section 82 and 83 of the Companies Act, 2017(the 
Act) read along with regulation 7 of the Companies (Further Issue of Capital) Regulations, 2020 
and Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, approval of the members be 
and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company, subject to any amendments 
that may be required by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the SECP), to 
issue, offer and allot to eligible employees of the Company, options exercisable  into  equity  
shares  of  the  Company of nominal value of Rs.10 each up to 9,000,000 shares under TPL 
Properties Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2020 (the ESOP scheme), at discounted 
exercise price with restrspective effect from July 01, 2020.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to sub sec (1)(b) of sec 83 of the Act read along with 
regulation 5 of the Companies (Further Issue of Capital) Regulations, 2020, the Company be 
and is hereby authorized to raise further capital and allot and issue, up to 2.75% of the existing 
paid-up Capital, 9,000,000  further ordinary shares of PKR.10/- each, without issue of right 
shares, to its employees under the ESOP Scheme at the price mentioned in above resolution.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to provision under regulation 7 of the Companies 
(Further Issue of Capital) Regulations, 2020, the grant of options equal to or exceeding one 
percent of the issued or paid up capital of the company at the time of grant of options, within one 
year, to any employee be and is hereby approved.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to provision under regulation 7 of the Companies 
(Further Issue of Capital) Regulations, 2020, the grant of options to any employee of subsidiary 
or holding Company, subject to the approval of the members at the General Meeting, be and is 
hereby approved.”

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to make modifications in 
the Scheme including in any ancillary documents thereto, as it may deem fit, from time to time in 
its absolute discretion in conformity with the provisions of the Act, the memorandum of 
association and articles of association of the Company and any other applicable laws.”

Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 relating to the said 
Special Business:   

To amend the Articles of Association of the Company in respect of requirements of the applicable 
Regulations/Rules pertaining to further issue of share capital.

The Company is desirable, to amend its Articles of Association to meet the requirements of the applicable 
regulations/rules in respect of further issue of share capital by inserting the given sub-article (iv) and (v) of 
Article 25 as recommended for the approval of shareholders by the Board of Directors of the Company in its 
meeting held on September 09, 2020:
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To enhance remuneration of non-executive directors from PKR 20,000/- per meeting (including 
sub-committee meetings) to PKR 100,000/- per meeting (including sub-committee meetings):

The Board of Directors of the Company is its meeting held on September 09, 2020 has approved to 
enhance the Directors’ remuneration for attending Board and Committees’ meeting as follows:

From PKR 20,000/- per meeting (including sub-committee meetings) to PKR 100,000/- per meeting 
(including sub-committee meetings)

To create, offer, issue and allot shares under TPL Properties Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 
2020 (the Scheme) under Companies (Further Issue of Capital) Regulations, 2020.

With an objective to attract, retain and motivate the best talent, the Board of Directors (the Board) of the 
Company has proposed to reserve certain percentage of further issue, not exceeding 10% of the 
shareholders Equity/Paid-Up Capital of the Company, for its employees under Employee Stock Option 
Scheme. The Board also proposed to issue, offer, and allot options exercisable into equity shares of the 
Company of nominal value of Rs.10 each up to 9,000,000 shares under TPL Properties Limited 
Employee Stock Option Scheme 2020 (the ESOP scheme), to the employees, duly determined by the 
Board and its Human Resource & Remuneration/Compensation Committee for the vesting period of 2 
years at discounted exercise price within exercise period of 1 year.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

7.  To transact any other business with the permission of the Chairman.

 By Order of the Board

 Danish Qazi
 Company Secretary       Karachi, October 06, 2020

Existin 2525g Article  of the Articles of Association 
of the Company 

Proposed Article 25 of the Articles of 
Association of the Compann y 

18. The company may, by special resolution- 

(i) consolidate and divide its share capital into  
shares of larger amount than its existing shares; 
 
(ii) sub-divide its existing shares or any of them 
into shares of smaller amount than is fixed 

by the memorandum of association, subject,;  
  
(iii) cancel any shares which, at the date of the pass-
ing of the resolution, have not been taken 
or agreed to be taken by any person. 

18. The company may, by special resolution- 

(i) consolidate and divide its share capital into  
shares of larger amount than its existing shares; 

(ii) sub-divide its existing shares or any of 
them into shares of smaller amount than is fixed 
by the memorandum of association, subject,; 

(iii) cancel any shares which, at the date of the pass-
ing of the resolution, have not been taken 
or agreed to be taken by any person. 

(iv) reserve certain percentage of further issue

 
for its employees under Employees Stock

 

Option Scheme. 
(v)  issue share of different classes and kinds 
with differential rights.
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Notes: 

1. Coronavirus Contingency Planning

 In view of the pandemic outbreak of COVID-19 (Corona Virus) and directives of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide Circular No. 05 of 2020 dated March 17, 2020, 
and extension of the applicability thereof vide Circular No. 25 of 2020 dated August 31, 2020, 
requiring listed companies to modify their usual planning for annual general meetings to protect 
the wellbeing of shareholders, the Company requests its members to attend and participate in the 
AGM through video link facility only to avoid large gathering at one place and prevent pandemic 
outbreak of COVID-19 (Corona Virus).

 Therefore, to attend and participate in the AGM through video link facility, members are requested 
to register their particulars (Name, Folio/CDS Account Number, CNIC Number and Cell Phone 
Number) with the Company Secretary by emailing to company.secretary@tplholdings.com at 
least 24 hours before the time of AGM.

 The member can also provide comments/suggestions for the propose agenda items of the 
Annual General Meeting by emailing the same to company.secretary@tplholdings.com

1. Closure of Share Transfer Books: 

 The Share Transfer Book of the Company will remain closed from October 21, 2020 to October 
27, 2020 (both days inclusive). Share Transfers received at M/s THK Associates (Pvt.) Ltd, 1st 
Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S, KARACHI-75400 by the close of business hours (5:00 PM) on 
Tuesday, October 20, 2020, will be treated as being in time for the purpose of above entitlement 
to the transferees. 

2. Participation in the Meeting:

 As per directives of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan to convene the annual 
general meeting with minimum members ensuring quorum of the meeting, the members are 
requested to consolidate their attendance and voting at the Annual General Meeting through 
proxies. 

 All members of the Company are entitled to attend the meeting and vote there at through Proxy. 
A proxy duly appointed shall have such rights as respect to the speaking and voting at the 
meeting as are available to a member. Duly filled and signed Proxy Form must be received at the 
Registrar of the Company M/s THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S, 
KARACHI-75400, not less than 48 hours before the Meeting.

3. For Attending the Meeting:

 i. In case of individual, the Account holder and/or Sub-account holder whose registration 
details are uploaded as per the CDC regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by 
providing copy of his/her valid CNIC or passport along with other particulars (Name, 
Folio/CDS Account Number, Cell Phone Number) via email to aforementioned id and in 
case of proxy must enclose copy of his/her CNIC or passport.

 ii. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with 
specimen signature of the nominee shall be provided via email to aforementioned id.  

4. Change of Address: 

 Members are requested to immediately notify the change, if any, in their registered address to the 
Share Registrar M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S, 
Karachi-75400.

5. Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 have been placed on the website of 
the Company, http://tplproperty.com/.
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I/We ________________________________----- S/o / D/o / W/o ____________--------------------------____________ 

resident of (full address)   

being a member(s) of TPL Properties Limited, holding _________                                              ______ ordinary shares,

hereby appoint _______________                 __________ S/o / D/o / W/o ______            ________________________

resident of (full address)__________________________________________¬¬¬¬¬¬¬¬¬¬¬¬_ or failing him / her

 _______________________________                      S/o / D/o / W/o ___________________________ 

resident of (full address)

as my / our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us on my / our behalf at Annual General 

Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 27 October, 2020 and/or adjournment thereof. 

As witness my / our hand (s) seal this on the ____________ day of ________________ 2020.

                                                                                                                                                                             Signed by the said:

                                                                                                                                                                      Folio No. / CDC Account No. 

In presence of: 

1. Signature:  

 Name:               

 Address:      

 CNIC or Passport No:

2. Signature:  

 Name:               

 Address:      

 CNIC or Passport No:

Signature on
Revenue Stamp of
Appropriate Value. 

The signature should agree with
the specimen registered with the

Company.
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Important Instructions:
 

1. The Proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registrar’s Office of the Company 

not less than forty eight (48) hours before the time of holding the meeting.   

2. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxy are deposited by a 

member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid. 

3.  In case of a proxy for an individual CDC shareholder, attested copies of CNIC or the passport, account 

and participant’s ID number of the beneficial owner and along with the proxy is required to be 

furnished with the proxy form.  

4.  In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with the specimen 

signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with the proxy form of the 

Company.  
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12th Floor, Centrepoint, Off Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, Adjacent KPT Interchange, Karachi-74900

Corporate Office
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